INTERNATIONAL ISO STANDARD 13485

Second edition 2003-07-15

Medical devices - Quality management systems - Requirements for regulatory purposes

Dispositifs medicaux - Systemes de management de la qualite - Exigences a des fins reglementaires

ISOReference number ISO 13485:2003(E)
© ISO 2003

ISO 13485:2003(E)

Table of Contents

Foreword

ISO (the International Organization for Standardization) is a worldwide federation of national standards bodies (ISO member bodies). The work of preparing International Standards is normally carried out through ISO technical committees. Each member body interested in a subject for which a technical committee has been established has the right to be represented on that committee. International organizations, governmental and non-governmental, in liaison with ISO, also take part in the work. ISO collaborates closely with the International Electrotechnical Commission (IEC) on all matters of electrotechnical standardization.

International Standards are drafted in accordance, with the rules given in the ISO/IEC Directives, Part 2. The main task of technical committees is to prepare International Standards. Draft International Standards adopted by the technical committees are circulated to the member bodies for voting. Publication as an International Standard requires approval by at least 75 % of the member bodies casting a vote.

Attention is drawn to the possibility that some of the elements of this document may be the subject of patent rights. ISO shall not be held responsible for identifying any or all such patent rights. ISO 13485 was prepared by Technical Committee ISO/TC 210, Quality *management and corresponding general aspects for medical devices*.

This second edition cancels and replaces the first edition (ISO 13485:1996), which has been technically revised. It also cancels and replaces ISO 13488:1996. Those organizations which have used ISO 13488 in the past may use this International Standard by excluding certain requirements in accordance with 1.2. This edition of ISO 13485 has a revised title and addresses quality assurance of product, customer requirements, and other elements of quality system management.

0. Introduction

0.1 General

This International Standard specifies requirements for a quality management system that can be used by an organization for the design and development production, installation and servicing of medical devices, and the design, development, and provision of related services.

It can also be used by internal and external parties, including certification bodies, to assess the organization's ability to meet customer and regulatory requirements.

Information marked "NOTE" is for guidance in understanding or clarifying the associated requirement.

It is emphasized that the quality management system requirements specified in this International Standard are complementary to technical requirements for products.

The adoption of a quality management system should be a strategic decision of an organization. The design and implementation of an organization's quality. management system is influenced by varying needs, particular objectives, the. products provided, the processes employed and the size and structure of the organization. It is not the intent of this International Standard to imply uniformity in the structure of quality management systems or uniformity of documentation.

There is a wide variety of medical devices and some of the particular requirements of this International Standard only apply to named groups of medical devices. These groups are defined in Clause 3.

0.2 Process approach

This International, Standard is based on a process approach to quality management.

Any activity that receives inputs and converts them to outputs can be considered as a process.

For an organization to function effectively, it has to identify and manage numerous linked processes.

Often the output from one process directly forms the input to the next.

The application of a system of processes within an organization, together with the identification and interactions of these processes, and their management, can be referred to as the "process approach".

0.3 Relationship with other standards

0.3.1 Relationship with ISO 9001

While this is a stand-alone standard, it is based on ISO 9001.

Those clauses or subclauses that are quoted directly and unchanged from ISO 9001 are in normal font. 'The fact that these subclauses are presented unchanged is noted in Annex B.

Where the text of this International Standard is not identical to the text of ISO 9001, the sentence or indent containing that text as a whole is shown in italics (in blue italics for electronic versions). The nature and reasons for the text changes are noted in Annex B.

0.3.2 Relationship with ISO/TR 94969

ISO/TR 14969 is a Technical Report intended to provide guidance for the application of ISO 13485.

0.4 Compatibility with other management systems

This International Standard follows the format of ISO 9001 for the convenience of users in the medical device community.

This International Standard does not include requirements specific to other management systems, such as those particular to environmental management, occupational health and safety management, or financial management.

However, this International Standard enables an organization to align or integrate its own quality management system with related management system requirements. It is possible for an organization to adapt its existing management system(s) in order to establish a quality management system that complies with the requirements of this International Standard.

Medical devices - Quality management systems - Requirements for regulatory purposes

1. Scope

1.1 General

This International Standard specifies requirements for a quality management system where an organization needs to demonstrate its ability to provide medical devices and related services that consistently meet customer requirements and regulatory requirements applicable to medical devices and related services.

The primary objective of this International Standard is to facilitate harmonized medical device regulatory requirements for quality management systems. As a result, it includes some particular requirements for medical devices and excludes some of the requirements of ISO 9001 that are not appropriate as regulatory requirements. Because of these exclusions, organizations whose quality management systems conform to this International Standard cannot claim conformity to ISO 9001 unless their quality management systems conform to all the requirements of ISO 9001 (see Annex B).

1.2 Application

All requirements of this International Standard are specific to organizations providing medical devices, regardless of the type or size of the organization.

If regulatory requirements permit exclusions of design and development controls (see 7.3), this can be used as a justification for their exclusion from the quality management system. These regulations can provide alternative arrangements that are to be addressed In the quality management system. It is the responsibility of the organization to ensure that claims of conformity with this International Standard reflect exclusion of design and development controls (see 4.2.2 a) and 7.3].

If any requirement(s) in Clause 7 of this International Standard is(are) not applicable due to the nature of the medical device(s) for which the quality management system is applied, the organization does not need to include such a requirement(s) in its quality management system (see 4.2.2 a)].

The processes required by this International Standard, which are applicable to the medical device(s), but which are not performed by the organization, are the responsibility of the organization and are accounted for in the organization's quality management system (see 4.1 a)].

In this International Standard the terms "if appropriate" and "where appropriate" are used several times. When a requirement is qualified by either of these phrases, it is deemed to be "appropriate" unless the organization can document a justification otherwise. A requirement is considered "appropriate" if it is necessary in order for

- the product to meet specified requirements, andlor
- the organization to carry out corrective action.

2 Normative references

The following referenced documents are indispensable for the application of this document. For dated references, only the edition cited applies. For undated references, the latest edition of the referenced document (including any amendments) applies.

ISO 9000:2000, Quality management systems - Fundamentals and vocabulary

3 Terms and definitions

For the purposes of this document, the terms and **definitions** given in ISO 9000 apply, *together with the following.*

The following terms, used in this edition of ISO 13485 to **describe** the supply chain, have been changed to **reflect** the vocabulary currently used:

supplier -----> organization ----> customer

The term "organization" replaces the term "supplier" used in ISO 13485:1996, and refers to the unit to which this International Standard applies. Also, the term "supplier" now replaces the term "subcontractor".

Throughout the text of this International Standard, wherever the term "product" occurs, it can also mean "service".

Wherever requirements are specified as applying to "medical devices", the requirements apply equally to related services as supplied by the organization.

The following definitions should be regarded as generic, as definitions provided in national regulations can differ slightly and take precedence.

3.1 active implantable medical device

active medical device which is intended to be totally or partially introduced, surgically or medically, into the human body or by medical intervention into a natural orifice, and which is intended to remain after the procedure

3.2 active medical device

medical device relying for its functioning on a source of electrical energy or any source of power other than that directly generated by the human body or gravity

3.3 advisory notice

notice issued by the organization, subsequent to delivery of the medical device, to provide supplementary information and/or to advise what action should be taken in

the use of a medical device,

- the modification of a medical device,
- the return of the medical device to the organization that supplied it, or
- the destruction of a medical device

NOTE Issue of an advisory notice might be required to comply with national or regional regulations.

3.4 customer complaint

written, electronic or oral communication that alleges deficiencies related to the identity, quality, durability, reliability, safety or performance of a medical device that has been placed on the market

3.5 implantable medical device medical device intended

- to be totally or partially introduced into the human body or a natural orifice, or
- to replace an epithelial surface or the surface of the eye,

by surgical intervention, and which is intended to remain after the procedure for at least 30 days, and which can only be removed by medical or surgical intervention

NOTE This definition applies to implantable medical devices other than active implantable medical devices.

3.6 labeling written, printed or graphic matter

- affixed to a medical device or any of its containers or wrappers, or
- accompanying a medical device,

related to identification, technical description, and use of the medical device, but excluding shipping documents

NOTE Some regional and national regulations refer to "labelling" as "information supplied by the manufacturer."

3.7 medical device

any instrument, apparatus, implement, machine, appliance, implant, in vitro reagent or calibrator, software, material or other similar or related article, intended by the manufacturer to be used, alone or in combination, for human beings for one or more of the specific purpose(s) of

- diagnosis, prevention, monitoring, treatment or alleviation of disease,
- diagnosis, monitoring, treatment, alleviation of or compensation for an injury,
- investigation, replacement, modification, or support of the anatomy or of a physiological process,
- supporting or sustaining life,
- control of conception.
- disinfection of medical devices,
- providing information for medical purposes by means of in vitro examination of specimens derived from the human body,

and which does not achieve its primary intended action in or on the human body by pharmacological, immunological or metabolic means, but which may be assisted in its function by such means.

NOTE This definition has been developed by the Global Harmonization Task Force (GHTF). See bibliographic reference [15].

3.8 sterile medical device

category of medical device intended to meet the requirements for sterility

NOTE The requirements for sterility of a medical device might be subject to national or regional regulations or standards.

4. Quality management system

4.1 General requirements

The organization shall establish, document, implement and maintain a quality management system and maintain its effectiveness in accordance with the requirements of this International Standard.

The organization shall

- a) identify the processes needed for the quality management system and their application throughout the organization (see 1.2),
- b) determine the sequence and interaction of these processes,
- c) determine criteria and methods needed to ensure that both the operation and control of these processes are effective,
- d) ensure the availability of resources and information necessary to support the operation and monitoring of these processes,
- e) monitor, measure and analyse these processes, and

f) implement actions necessary to achieve planned results and maintain the effectiveness of these processes.

These processes shall be managed by the organization in accordance with the requirements of this International Standard.

Where an organization chooses to outsource any process that affects product conformity with requirements, the organization shall ensure control over such processes. Control of such outsourced processes shall be identified within the quality management system (see 8.5.1).

NOTE Processes needed for the quality management system referred to above should include processes for management activities, provision of resources, product realization and measurement.

4.2 Documentation requirements

4.2.1 General

The quality management system documentation shall include

- a) documented statements of a quality policy and quality objectives,
- b) a quality manual,
- c) documented procedures required by this International Standard.
- d) documents needed by the organization to ensure the effective planning, operation and control of its processes,
- e) records required by this International Standard (see 4.2.4), and
- f) any other documentation specified by national or regional regulations.

Where this International Standard specifies that a requirement, procedure, activity or special arrangement be "documented", it shall, in addition, be implemented and maintained.

For each type or model of medical device, the organization shall establish and maintain a file either containing or identifying documents defining product specifications and quality management system requirements (see 4.2.3). These documents shall define the complete manufacturing process and, if applicable, installation and servicing.

- NOTE 1 The extent of the quality management system documentation can differ from one organization to another due to
- a) the size of the organization and type of activities,
- b) the complexity of processes and their interactions, and
- c) the competence of personnel.

NOTE 2 The documentation can be in any form or type of medium.

4.2.2 Quality manual

The organization shall establish and maintain a quality manual that includes

- a) the scope of the quality management system, including details of and justification for any exclusion and/or non-application (see 1.2),
- b) the documented procedures established for the quality management system, or reference to them, and
- c) a description of the interaction between the processes of the quality management system.

The quality manual shall outline the structure of the documentation used in the quality management system.

4.2.3 Control of documents

Documents required by the, quality management system shall be controlled. Records are a special type of document and shall be controlled according to the requirements given in 4.2.4.

A documented procedure shall be established to define the controls needed

- a) to review and approve documents for adequacy prior to issue,
- b) to review and update as necessary and re-approve documents,
- c) to ensure that changes and the current revision status of documents are identified,
- d) to ensure that relevant versions of applicable documents are available at points of use,
- e) to ensure that documents remain legible and readily identifiable,
- f) to ensure that documents of external origin are identified and their distribution controlled,
- g) to prevent the unintended use of obsolete documents, and to apply suitable identification to them if they are retained for any purpose.

The organization shall ensure that changes to documents are reviewed and approved either by the original approving function or another designated function which has access to pertinent background information upon which to base its decisions.

The organization shall define the period for which at least one copy of obsolete controlled documents shall be retained. This period shall ensure that documents to which medical devices have been manufactured and tested are available for at least the lifetime of the medical device as defined by the organization, but not less than the retention period of any resulting record (see 4.2.4), or as specified by relevant regulatory requirements.

4.2.4 Control of records

Records shall be established and maintained to provide evidence of conformity to requirements and of the effective operation of the quality management system. Records shall remain legible, readily identifiable and retrievable. A documented procedure shall be established to define the controls needed for the identification, storage, protection, retrieval, retention time and disposition of records.

The organization shall retain the records for a period of time at least equivalent to the lifetime of the medical device as defined by the organization, but not less than two years from the date of product release by the organization or as specified by relevant regulatory requirements.

5. Management responsibility

5.1 Management commitment

Top management shall provide evidence of its commitment to the development and implementation of the quality management system and maintaining its effectiveness by

- a) communicating to the organization the importance of meeting customer as well as statutory and regulatory requirements,
- b) establishing the quality policy,
- c) ensuring that quality objectives are established,
- d) conducting management reviews, and
- e) ensuring the availability of resources.

NOTE For the purposes of this International Standard, statutory requirements are limited to the safety and performance of the medical device only,

5.2 Customer focus

Top management shall ensure that customer requirements are determined and are met (see 7.2.1 and 8.2.1).

5.3 Quality policy

Top management shall ensure that the quality policy

- a) is appropriate to the purpose of the organization,
- b) includes a commitment to comply with requirements and to maintain the effectiveness of the quality management system,
- c) provides a framework for establishing and reviewing quality objectives,
- d) is communicated and understood within the organization, and
- e) is reviewed for continuing suitability.

5.4 Planning

5.4.1 Quality objectives

Top management shall ensure that quality objectives, including those needed to meet requirements for product [see 7.1 a)], are established at relevant functions and levels within the organization. The quality objectives shall be measurable and consistent with the quality policy.

5.4.2 Quality management system planning

Top management shall ensure that

- a) the planning of the quality management system is carried out in order to meet the requirements given in 4.1, as well as the quality objectives, and
- b) the integrity of the quality management system is maintained when changes to the quality management system are planned and implemented.

5.5 Responsibility, authority and communication

5.5.1 Responsibility and authority

Top management shall ensure that responsibilities and authorities are defined, documented and communicated within the organization.

Top management shall establish the interrelation of all personnel who manage, perform and verify work affecting quality, and shall ensure the independence and authority necessary to perform these tasks.

NOTE National or regional regulations might require the nomination of specific persons as responsible for activities related to monitoring experience from the post-production stage and reporting adverse events (see 8.2.1 and 8.5.1).

5.5.2 Management representative

Top management shall appoint a member of management who, irrespective of other responsibilities, shall have responsibility and authority that includes

- a) ensuring that processes needed for the quality management system are established, implemented and maintained,
- b) reporting to top management on the performance of the quality management system and any need for improvement (see 8.5), and
- c) ensuring the promotion of awareness of regulatory and customer requirements throughout the organization.
- NOTE The responsibility of a management representative can include liaison with external parties on matters relating to the quality management system.

5.5.3 Internal communication

Top management shall ensure that appropriate communication processes are established within the organization and that communication takes place regarding the effectiveness of the quality management system.

5.6 Management review

5.6.1 General

Top management shall review the organization's quality management system, at planned intervals, to ensure its continuing suitability, adequacy and effectiveness. This review shall include assessing opportunities for improvement and the need for changes to the quality management system, including the quality policy and quality objectives. Records from management reviews shall be maintained (see 4.2:4).

5.6.2 Review input

The input to management review shall include information

- a) results of audits,
- b) customer feedback,
- c) process performance and product conformity,
- d) status of preventive and corrective actions,
- e) follow-up actions from previous management reviews,
- f) changes that could affect the quality management system,
- g) recommendations for improvement, and
- h) new or revised regulatory requirements.

5.6.3 Review output

The output from the management review shall include any decisions and actions related to

- a) improvements needed to maintain the effectiveness of the quality management system and its processes,
- b) improvement of product related to customer requirements, and
- c) resource needs.

6. Resource management

6.1 Provision of resources

The organization shall determine and provide the resources needed

- a) to implement the quality management system and to maintain its effectiveness, and
- b) to meet regulatory and customer requirements.

6.2 Human resources

6.2.1 General

Personnel performing work affecting product quality shall be competent on the basis of appropriate education, training, skills and experience.

6.2.2 Competence, awareness and training

The organization shall

- a) determine the necessary competence for personnel performing work affecting product quality,
- b) provide training or take other actions to satisfy these needs,
- c) evaluate the effectiveness of the actions taken,
- d) ensure that its personnel are aware of the relevance and importance of their activities and how they contribute to the achievement of the quality objectives, and
- e) maintain appropriate records of education, training, skills and experience (see 4.2.4).

NOTE National or regional regulations might require the organization to establish documented procedures for identifying training needs.

6.3 Infrastructure

The organization shall determine, provide and maintain the infrastructure needed to achieve conformity to product requirements. Infrastructure includes, as applicable

- a) buildings, workspace and associated utilities,
- b) process equipment (both hardware and software), and
- c) supporting services (such as transport or communication).

The organization shall establish documented requirements for maintenance activities, including their frequency, when such activities or lack thereof can affect product quality.

Records of such maintenance shall be maintained (see 4.2.4).

6.4 Work environment

The organization shall determine and manage the work environment needed to achieve conformity to product requirements.

The following requirements shall apply.

- a) The organization shall establish documented requirements for health, cleanliness and clothing of personnel if contact between such personnel and the product or work environment could adversely affect the quality of the product (see 7.5.1.2.1).
- b) If work environment conditions can have an adverse effect on product quality, the organization shall establish documented requirements for the work environment conditions and documented procedures or work instructions to monitor and control these work environment conditions (see 7.5.1.2.1).
- c) The organization shall ensure that all personnel who are required to work temporarily under special environmental conditions within the work environment are appropriately trained or supervised by a trained person [see 6.2.2 b)].
- d) If appropriate, special arrangements shall be established and documented for the control of contaminated or potentially contaminated product in order to prevent contamination of other product; the work environment or personnel (see 7.5.3.1).

7. Product realization

7.1 Planning of product realization

The organization shall plan and develop the processes needed for product realization. Planning of product realization shall be consistent with the requirements of the other processes of the quality management system (see 4.1).

In planning product realization, the organization shall determine the following, as appropriate:

- a) quality objectives and requirements for the product;
- b) the need to establish processes, documents, and provide resources specific to the product;
- c) required verification, validation, monitoring, inspection and test activities specific to the product and the criteria for product acceptance;
- d) records needed to provide evidence that the realization processes and resulting product meet requirements (see 4.2.4).

The output of this planning shall be in a form suitable for the organization's method of operations.

The organization shall establish documented requirements for risk management throughout product realization. Records arising from risk management shall be maintained (see 4.2.4).

- NOTE 1 A document specifying the processes of the quality management system (including the product realization processes) and the resources to be applied to a specific product, project or contract, can be referred to as a quality plan.
- NOTE 2 The organization may also apply the requirements given in 7.3 to the development of product realization processes.
- NOTE 3 See ISO 14971 for guidance related to risk management.

7.2 Customer-related processes

7.2.1 Determination of requirements related to the product

The organization shall determine

- a) requirements specified by the customer, including the requirements for delivery and postdelivery activities,
- b) requirements not stated by the customer but necessary for specified or intended use, where known,
- c) statutory and regulatory requirements related to the product, and
- d) any additional requirements determined by the organization.

7.2.2 Review of requirements related to the product

The organization shall review the requirements related to the product. This review shall be conducted prior to the organization's commitment to supply a product to the customer (e.g. submission of tenders, acceptance of contracts or orders, acceptance of changes to contracts or orders) and shall ensure that

- a) product requirements are defined and documented,
- b) contract or order requirements differing from those previously expressed are resolved, and
- c) the organization has the ability to meet the defined requirements.

Records of the results of the review and actions arising from the review shall be maintained (see 4.2.4).

Where the customer provides no documented statement of requirement, the customer requirements shall be confirmed by the organization before acceptance.

Where product requirements are changed, the organization shall ensure that relevant documents are amended and that relevant personnel are made aware of the changed requirements.

NOTE In some situations, such as internet sales, a formal review is impractical for each order. Instead the review can cover relevant product information such as catalogues or advertising material.

7.2.3 Customer communication

The organization shall determine and implement effective arrangements for communicating with customers in relation to

- a) product information,
- b) enquiries, contracts or order handling, including amendments,
- c) customer feedback, including customer complaints (see 8.2.1), and
- d) advisory notices (see 8.5.1).

7.3 Design and development

7.3.1 Design and development planning

The organization shall establish documented procedures for design and development.

The organization shall plan and control the design and development of product.

During the design and development planning, the organization shall determine

a) the design and development stages,

- b) the review; verification, validation and design transfer activities (see Note) that are appropriate at each design and development stage, and
- c) the responsibilities and authorities for design and development.

The organization shall manage the interfaces between different groups involved in design and development to ensure effective communication and clear assignment of responsibility.

Planning output shall be documented, and updated as appropriate, as the design and development progresses (see 4.2.3).

NOTE Design transfer activities during the design and development process ensure that design and development outputs are verified as suitable far manufacturing before becoming final production specifications.

7.3.2 Design and development inputs

Inputs relating to product requirements shall be determined and records maintained (see 4.2.4). These inputs shall include

- a) functional, performance and safety requirements, according to the intended use,
- b) applicable statutory and regulatory requirements,
- c) where applicable, information derived from previous similar designs,
- d) other requirements essential for design and development, and
- e) output(s) of risk management (see 7.1).

These inputs shall be reviewed for adequacy and approved.

Requirements shall be complete, unambiguous and not in conflict with each other.

7.3.3 Design and development outputs

The outputs of design and development shall be provided in a form that enables verification against the design and development input and shall be approved prior to release.

Design and development outputs shall

- a) meet the input requirements for design and development,
- b) provide appropriate information for purchasing, production and for service provision,
- c) contain or reference product acceptance criteria, and
- d) specify the characteristics of the product that are essential for its safe and proper use.

Records of the design and development outputs shall be maintained (see 4.2.4).

NOTE Records of design and development outputs can include specifications, manufacturing procedures, engineering drawings, and engineering or research logbooks.

7.3.4 Design and development review

At suitable stages, systematic reviews of design and development shall be performed in accordance with planned arrangements (see 7.3.1)

- a) to evaluate the ability of the results of design and development to meet requirements, and
- b) to identify any problems and propose necessary actions.

Participants in such reviews shall include representatives of functions concerned with the design and development stage(s) being reviewed, as well as other specialist personnel (see 5.5.1 and 6.2.1).

Records of the results of the reviews and any necessary actions shall be maintained (see 4.2.4).

7.3.5 Design and development verification

Verification shall be performed in accordance with planned arrangements (see 7.3.1) to ensure that the design and development outputs have met the design and development input requirements. Records of the results of the verification and any necessary actions shall be maintained (see 4.2.4).

7.3.5 Design and development validation

Design and development validation shall be performed in accordance with planned arrangements (see 7.3.1) to ensure that the resulting product is capable of meeting the requirements for the specified application or intended use. Validation shall be completed prior to the delivery or implementation of the product (see Note 1).

Records of the results of validation and any necessary actions shall be maintained (see 4.2.4).

As part of design and development validation, the organization shall perform clinical evaluations and/or evaluation of performance of the medical device, as required by national or regional regulations (see Note 2).

- NOTE 1 if a medical device can only be validated following assembly and installation at point of use, delivery is not considered to be complete until the product has been formally transferred to the customer.
- NOTE 2 Provision of the medical device for purposes of clinical evaluations and/or evaluation of performance is not considered to be delivery.

7.3.7 Control of design and development changes

Design and development changes shall be identified and records maintained. The changes shall be reviewed, verified and validated, as appropriate, and approved before implementation. The review of design and development changes shall include evaluation of the effect of the changes on constituent parts and product already delivered.

Records of the results of the review of changes and any necessary actions shall be maintained (see 4.2.4).

7.4 Purchasing

7.4.1 Purchasing process

The organization shall establish documented procedures to ensure that purchased product conforms to specified purchase requirements.

The type and extent of control applied to the supplier and the purchased product shall be dependent upon the effect of the purchased product on subsequent product realization or the final product.

The organization shall evaluate and select suppliers based on their ability to supply product in accordance with the organization's requirements. Criteria for selection, evaluation and reevaluation shall be established. Records of the results of evaluations and any necessary actions arising from the evaluation shall be maintained (see 4.2.4).

7.4.2 Purchasing information

Purchasing information shall describe the product to be purchased, including where appropriate

- a) requirements for approval of product, procedures, processes and equipment,
- b) requirements for qualification of personnel, and
- c) quality management system requirements.

The organization shall ensure the adequacy of specified purchase requirements prior to their communication to the supplier.

To the extent required for traceability given in 7.5.3.2, the organization shall maintain relevant purchasing information, i.e. documents (see 4.2.3) and records (see 4.2.4).

7.4.3 Verification of purchased product

The organization shall establish and implement the inspection or other activities necessary for ensuring that purchased product meets specified purchase requirements.

Where the organization or its customer intends to perform verification at the supplier's premises, the organization shall state the intended verification arrangements and method of product release in the purchasing information.

Records of the verification shall be maintained (see 4.2.4).

7.5 Production and service provision

7.5.1 Control of production and service provision

7.5.1.1 General requirements

The organization shall plan and carry out production and service provision under controlled conditions. Controlled conditions shall include, as applicable

- a) the availability of information that describes the characteristics of the product,
- b) the availability of documented procedures, documented requirements, work instructions, and reference materials and reference measurement procedures as necessary,
- c) the use of suitable equipment,
- d) the availability and use of monitoring and measuring devices,
- e) the implementation of monitoring and measurement,
- f) the implementation of release, delivery and post-delivery activities, and
- g) the implementation of defined operations for labelling and packaging.

The organization shall establish and maintain a record (see 4.2.4) for each batch of medical devices that provides traceability to the extent specified in 7.5.3 and identifies the amount manufactured and amount approved for distribution. The batch record shall be verified and approved.

NOTE A batch can be a single medical device.

7.5.1.2 Control of production and service provision - Specific requirements

7.5.1.2.1 Cleanliness of product and contamination control

The organization shall establish documented requirements for cleanliness of product if

- a) product is cleaned by the organization prior to sterilization and/or its use, or
- b) product is supplied non-sterile to be subjected to a cleaning process prior to sterilization and/or its use, or
- c) product is supplied to be used non-sterile and its cleanliness is of significance in use, or
- d) process agents are to be removed from product during manufacture.

If product is cleaned in accordance with a) or b) above, the requirements contained in 6.4 a) and 6.4 b) do not apply prior to the cleaning process.

7.5.1.2.2 Installation activities

If appropriate, the organization shall establish documented requirements which contain acceptance criteria for installing and verifying the installation of the medical device.

If the agreed customer requirements allow installation to be performed other than by the organization or its authorized agent, the organization shall provide documented requirements for installation and verification.

Records of installation and verification performed by the organization or its authorized agent shall be maintained (see 4.2.4).

7.5.1.2.3 Servicing activities

if servicing is a specified requirement, the organization shall establish documented procedures, work instructions and reference materials and reference measurement procedures, as necessary, for performing servicing activities and verifying that they meet the specified requirements.

Records of servicing activities carried out by the organization shall be maintained (see 4.2.4).

NOTE Servicing can include, for example, repair and maintenance.

7.5.1.3 Particular requirements for sterile medical devices

The organization shall maintain records of the process parameters for the sterilization process which was used for each sterilization batch (see 4.2.4). Sterilization records shall be traceable to each production batch of medical devices (see 7.5.?.1).

7.5.2 Validation of processes for production and service provision

7.5.2.1 General requirements

The organization shall validate any processes for production and service provision where the resulting output cannot be verified by subsequent monitoring or measurement. This includes any processes where deficiencies become apparent only after the product is in use or the service has been delivered.

Validation shall demonstrate the ability of these processes to achieve planned results.

The organization shall establish arrangements for these processes including, as applicable

- a) defined criteria for review and approval of the processes,
- b) approval of equipment and qualification of personnel,
- c) use of specific methods and procedures,
- d) requirements for records (see 4.2.4), and
- e) revalidation.

The organization shall establish documented procedures for the validation of the application of computer software (and changes to such software and/or its application) for production and service provision that affect the ability of the product to conform to specified requirements. Such software applications shall be validated prior to initial use.

Records of validation shall be maintained (see 4.2.4)

7.5.2.2 Particular requirements for sterile medical devices

The organization shall establish documented procedures for the validation of sterilization processes. Sterilization processes shall be validated prior to initial use.

Records of validation of each sterilization process shall be maintained (see 4.2.4).

7.5.3 Identification and traceability

7.5.3.1 Identification

The organization shall identify the product by suitable means throughout product realization, and shall establish documented procedures for such product identification.

The organization shall establish documented procedures to ensure that medical devices returned to the organization are identified and distinguished from conforming product [see 6.4 d)].

7.5.3.2 Traceability

7.5.3.2.1 General

The organization shall establish documented procedures for traceability. Such procedures shall define the extent of product traceability and the records required (see 4.2.4, 8.3 and 8.5).

Where traceability is a requirement, the organization shall control and record the unique identification of the product (see 4.2.4).

NOTE Configuration management is a means by which. identification and traceability can be maintained.

7.5.3.2.2 Particular requirements for active implantable medical devices and implantable medical devices

In defining the records required for traceability, the organization shall include records of all components, materials and work environment conditions, if these could cause the medical device not to satisfy its specified requirements.

The organization shall require that its agents or distributors maintain records of the distribution of medical devices to allow traceability and that such records are available for inspection.

Records of the name and address of the shipping package consignee shall be maintained (see 4.2.4).

7.5.3.3 Status identification

The organization shall identify the product status with respect to monitoring and measurement requirements.

The identification of product status shall be maintained throughout production,' storage, installation and servicing of the product to ensure that only product that has passed the required inspections and tests (or released under an authorized concession) is dispatched, used or installed.

7.5.4 Customer property

The organization shall exercise care with customer property while it is under the organization's control or being used by the organization. The organization shall identify, verify, protect and safeguard customer property provided for use or incorporation into the product. If any customer property is lost, damaged or otherwise found to be unsuitable for use, this shall be reported to the customer and records maintained (see 4.2.4).

NOTE Customer property can include intellectual property or confidential health information.

7.5.5 Preservation of product

The organization shall establish documented procedures or documented work instructions for preserving the conformity of product during internal processing and delivery to the intended destination.

This preservation shall include identification, handling, packaging, storage and protection. Preservation shall also apply to the constituent parts of a product.

The organization shall establish documented procedures or documented work instructions for the control of product with a limited shelf-life or requiring special storage conditions. Such special storage conditions shall be controlled and recorded (see 4.2.4).

7.6 Control of monitoring and measuring devices

The organization shall determine the monitoring and measurement to be undertaken and the monitoring and measuring devices needed to provide evidence of conformity of product to determined requirements (see 7.2.1).

The organization shall establish documented procedures to ensure that monitoring and measurement can be carried out and are carried out in a manner that is consistent with the monitoring and measurement requirements.

Where necessary to ensure valid results, measuring equipment shall

- a) be calibrated or verified at specified intervals, or prior to use, against measurement standards traceable to international or national measurement standards; where no such standards exist, the basis used for calibration or verification shall be recorded;
- b) be adjusted or re-adjusted as necessary;
- c) be identified to enable the calibration status to be determined;
- d) be safeguarded from adjustments that would invalidate the measurement result;
- e) be protected from damage and deterioration during handling, maintenance and storage.

In addition, the organization shall assess and record the validity of the previous measuring results when the equipment is found not to conform to requirements. The organization shall take appropriate action on the equipment and any product affected. Records of the results of calibration and verification shall be maintained (see 4.2.4).

When used in the monitoring and measurement of specified requirements, the ability of computer software to satisfy the intended application shall be confirmed. This shall be undertaken prior to initial use and reconfirmed as necessary.

NOTE See ISO 10012 for guidance related to measurement }management systems.

8. Measurement, analysis and improvement

8.1 General

The organization shall plan and implement the monitoring, measurement, analysis and improvement processes needed

- a) to demonstrate conformity of the product,
- b) to ensure conformity of the quality management system, and
- c) to maintain the effectiveness of the quality management system.

This shall include determination of applicable methods, including statistical techniques, and the extent of their use.

NOTE National or regional regulations might require documented procedures for implementation and control of the application of statistical techniques.

8.2 Monitoring and measurement

8.2.1 Feedback

As one of the measurements of the performance of the quality management system, the organization shall monitor information relating to whether the organization has met customer requirements.

The methods for obtaining and using this information shall be determined.

The organization shall establish a documented procedure for a feedback system [see 7.2.3 c)] to provide early warning of quality problems and for input into the corrective and preventive action processes (see 8.5.2 and 8.5.3).

If national or regional regulations require the organization to gain experience from the post-production phase, the review of this experience shall form part of the feedback system (see 8.5.3).

8.2.2 Internal audit

The organization shall conduct internal audits at planned intervals to determine whether the quality management system

- a) conforms to the planned arrangements (see 7.1), to the requirements of this International Standard and to the quality management system requirements established by the organization, and
- b) is effectively implemented and maintained.

An audit programme shall be planned, taking into consideration the status and importance of the processes and areas to be audited, as well as the results of previous audits. The audit criteria, scope, frequency and methods shall be defined. Selection of auditors and conduct of audits shall ensure objectivity and impartiality of the audit process. Auditors shall not audit their own work.

The responsibilities and requirements for planning and conducting audits, and for reporting results and maintaining records (see 4.2.4) shall be defined in a documented procedure.

The management responsible for the area being audited shall ensure that actions are taken without undue delay to eliminate detected nonconformities and their causes. Follow-up activities shall include the verification of the actions taken and the reporting of verification results (see 8.5.2).

NOTE See ISO 19011 for guidance related to quality auditing.

8.2.3 Monitoring and measurement of processes

The organization shall apply suitable methods for monitoring and, where applicable, measurement of the quality management system processes. These methods shall demonstrate the ability of the processes to achieve planned results. When planned results are not achieved, correction and corrective action shall be taken, as appropriate, to ensure conformity of the product.

8.2.4 Monitoring and measurement of product

8.2.4.1 General requirements

The organization shall monitor and measure the characteristics of the product to verify that product requirements have been met. This shall be carried out at appropriate stages of the product realization process in accordance with the planned arrangements (see 7.9) and documented procedures (see 7.5.9.1).

Evidence of conformity with the acceptance criteria shall be maintained. Records shall indicate the person(s) authorizing release of product (see 4.2.4).

Product release and service delivery shall not proceed until the planned arrangements (see 7.1) have been satisfactorily completed.

8.2.4.2 Particular requirement for active implantable medical devices and implantable medical devices

The organization shall record (see 4.2.4) the identity of personnel performing any inspection or testing.

8.3 Control of nonconforming product

The organization shall ensure that product which does not conform to product requirements is identified and controlled to prevent its unintended use or delivery. The controls and related responsibilities and authorities for dealing with nonconforming product shall be defined in a documented procedure.

The organization shall deal with nonconforming product by one or more of the following ways:

- a) by taking action to eliminate the detected nonconformity;
- b) by authorizing its use, release or acceptance under concession;
- c) by taking action to preclude its original intended use or application.

The organization shall ensure that nonconforming product is accepted by concession only if regulatory requirements are met. Records of the identity of the person(s) authorizing the concession shall be maintained (see 4.2.4).

Records of the nature of nonconformities and any subsequent actions taken, including concessions obtained, shall be maintained (see 4.2:4):

When nonconforming product is corrected it shall be subject to re-verification to demonstrate conformity to the requirements.

When nonconforming product is detected after delivery or use has started, the organization shall take action appropriate to the effects, or potential effects, of the nonconformity.

If product needs to be reworked (one or more times), the organization shall document the rework process in a work instruction that has undergone the same authorization and approval procedure as the original work instruction. Prior to authorization and approval of the work instruction, a determination of any adverse effect of the rework upon product shall be made and documented (see 4.2.3 and 7.5.1).

8.4 Analysis of data

The organization shall establish documented procedures to determine, collect and analyse appropriate data to demonstrate the suitability and effectiveness of the quality management system and to evaluate if improvement of the effectiveness of the quality management system can be made.

This shall include data generated as a result of monitoring and measurement and from other relevant sources. The analysis of data shall provide information relating to

- a) feedback (see 8.2.1),
- b) conformity to product requirements (see 7.2.1),
- c) characteristics and trends of processes and products including opportunities for preventive action, and
- d) suppliers.

Records of the results of the analysis of data shall be maintained (see 4.2.4).

8.5 Improvement

8.5.1 General

The organization shall identify and implement any changes necessary to ensure and maintain the continued suitability, and effectiveness of the quality management system through the use of the quality policy, quality objectives, audit results; analysis of data, corrective and preventive actions and management review.

The organization shall establish documented procedures for the issue and implementation of advisory notices. These procedures shall be capable of being implemented at any time.

Records of all customer complaint investigations shall be maintained (see 4.2.4). If investigation determines that the activities outside the organization contributed to the customer complaint, relevant information shall be exchanged between the organizations involved (see 4.1).

If any customer complaint is not followed by corrective and/or preventive action, the reason shall be authorized (see 5.5.1) and recorded (see 4.2.4).

If national or regional regulations require notification of adverse events that meet specified reporting criteria, the organization shall establish documented procedures to such notification to regulatory authorities.

8.5.2 Corrective action

The organization shall take action to eliminate the cause of nonconformities in order to prevent recurrence. Corrective actions shall be appropriate to the effects of the nonconformities encountered.

A documented procedure shall be established to define requirements for

- a) reviewing nonconformities (including customer complaints),
- b) determining the causes of nonconformities;
- c) evaluating the need for action to ensure that nonconformities do not recur,
- d) determining and implementing action needed, including, if appropriate, updating documentation (see 4.2),
- e) recording of the results of any investigation and of action taken (see 4.2.4), and
- t) reviewing the corrective action taken and its effectiveness.

8.5.3 Preventive action

The organization shall determine action to eliminate the causes of potential nonconformities in order to prevent their occurrence. Preventive actions shall be appropriate to the effects of the potential problems.

A documented procedure shall be established to define requirements for

- a) determining potential nonconformities and their causes,
- b) evaluating the need for action to prevent occurrence of nonconformities,
- c) determining and implementing action needed,
- d) recording of the results of any investigations and of action taken (see 4.2.4), and
- e) reviewing preventive action taken and its effectiveness.

Annex A (informative)

Correspondence between ISO 13485:2003 and ISO 13485:1996 Table A.1 - Correspondence between ISO 13485:1996 and ISO 13485:2003

Table A.1 - Correspondence between ISO 13485:1996 ar	nd ISO 13485:2003
ISO 13485:1996	485:2003
1 Scope	1
2 Normative reference	2
3 Definitions	3
4 Quality system requirements [title only]	
4.1 Management responsibility [title only]	
4.1.1 Quality policy	5.1 + 5.3 + 5.4.1
4.1.2 Organization [title only]	
4.1.2.1 Responsibility and authority	5.5.1
4.1.2.2 Resources	6.1 +6.2.1
4.1.2.3 Management representative	5.5.2
4.1.3 Manage <u>ment review</u>	5.6.1 + 8.5.1
4.2 Quality system [title only]	
4.2.1 General	4.1 +4.2.2
4.2.2 Quality system procedures	4.2.1
4.2.3 Quality planning	5.4.2+7.1
4.3 Contract review [title only]	
4.3.1 General [title only]	
4.3.2 Review	5.2+7.2.1 +7.2.2+7.2.3
4.3.3 Amendment to a contract	7.2.2
4.3.4 Records	7.2.2
4.4 Design control [title only]	
4.4.1 General [title only]	
4.4.2 Design and development planning	7.3.1
4.4.3 Organizational and technical interfaces	7.3.1
4.4.4 Design input	7.2.1 +7.3.2
4.4.5 Design output	7.3.3
4.4.6 Design review	7.3.4
4.4.7 Design verification	7.3.5
4.4.8 Design validation	7.3.6
4.4.9 Design changes	7.3.7
4.5 Document and data control [title only]	
4.5.1 General	4.2.3
4.5.2 Document and data approval and issue	4.2.3
4.5.3 Document and data changes	4.2.3
© ISO 2003 - All rights reserved	

© ISO 2003 - All rights reserved

21

ISO 13485:2003(E)

Table A:1 (continued)

ISO13485:1996	ISO 13485:2003
4.6 Purchasing [title only]	
4.6.1 General [title only]	
4.6.2 Evaluation of subcontractors	7.4.1

4.6.3 Purchasing data	7.4.2
4.6.4 Verification of purchased product	7.4.3
4.7 Control of customer-supplied product	7.5.4
4.8 Product identification and traceability	7.5.3
4.9 Process control	6.3 + 6.4 + 7.5.1 + 7.5.2
4.10 Inspection and testing [title only]	
4.10.1 General	7.1 +8.1
4.10.2 Receiving inspection and testing	7.4.3 + 8.2.4
4.10.3 In-process inspection and testing	8.2.4
4.10.4 Final inspection and testing	8.2.4
4.10.5 Inspection and test records	7.5.3 + 8.2.4
4.11 Control of inspection, measuring and test equipment [title only]	
4.11.1 General	7.6
4.11.2 Control procedure	7.6
4.12 Inspection and test status	7.5.3
4.13 Control of nonconforming product [title only]	
4.13.1 General	8.3
4.1 <u>3.2 Review and disposition of nonconforming product</u>	8.3
4.14 Corrective and preventive action [title only]	
4.14.1 General	8.5.2 + 8.5.3
4.14.2 Corrective action	8.5.2
4.14.3 Preventive action	8.5.3
4.15 Handling, storage, packaging, preservation & delivery [title	
4.15.1 General	6.4
4.15.2 Handling	7.5.5
4.15.3 Storage	7.5.5
4.15.4 Packaging	7.5.5
4.15.5 Preservation	7.5.5
4.15.6 Delivery	7.5.1
4.16 Control of quality records	4.2.4
4.17 Internal quality audits	8.2.2 + 8.2.3
4.18 Training	6.2.2
4.19 Servicing	7.5.1
4.20 Statistical techniques [title only]	
4.20.1 Identification of need	8.1 + 8.2.3 + 8.2.4 + 8.4
4.20.2 Procedures	8.1 + 8.2.3 + 8.2.4 + 8.4
າງ	

22

© ISO 2003 - All rights reserved

ISO 13485:2003(E)
Table A.2 - Correspondence between ISO 13485:2003 and ISO 13485:1996

Table A.2 - Correspondence between 150 15455.2005 and 150 15465.1596	
ISO 13485:2003	ISO 13485:1996
1 Scope	1
1.1 General	
1.2 Application	
2 Normative reference	2
3 Terms and definitions	3

4 Quality management system [title only]	
4.1 General requirements	4.2.1
4.2 Documentation requirements [title only] 4.2.1 General 4.2.2 Quality manual 4.2.3 Control of documents 4.2.4 Control of records	4.22 4.2.1 4.5.1 + 4.5.2 + 4.5.3 4.16
5 Management responsibility [title only]	
5.1 Management commitment	4.1.1
5.2 Customer focus	4.3.2
5.3 Quality policy	4.1.1
5.4 Planning [title only]	
5.4.1 Quality objectives 5.4.2 Quality management system planning	4.1.1 4.2.3
5.5 Responsibility, authority and communication [title only] 5.5.1 Responsibility and authority 5.5.2 Management representative 5.5.3 Internal communication	4.1.2.1 4.1.2.3
5.6 Management review [title only]	
5.6.1 General 5.6.2 Review input 5.6.3 Review output	4.1.3
6 Resource management [title only]	
6.1 Provision of resources	4.1.2.2
6.2 Human resources [title only] 6.2.1 General 6.2.2 Competence, awareness and training	4.1.2.2 4.18
6.3 Infrastructure	4.9
6.4 Work environment	4.9+4.15.1
7 Product realization [title only]	
7.1 Planning of product realization	4.2.3 + 4.10.1
© ISO 2003 - All rights reserved	•

© ISO 2003 - All rights reserved

23 ISO 13485:2003(E) Table A.2 (continued)

Table A.2 (Continued)	
ISO 13485:2003	ISO 13485:1996
7.2 Customer-related processes [title only]	
7.2.1 Determination of requirements related to the product	4.3.2 + 4.4.4
7.2.2 Review of requirements related to the product	4.3.2 + 4.3.3 + 4.3.4
7.2.3 Customer communication	4.3.2
7.3 Design and development [title only]	
7.3.1 Design and development planning	4.4.2 + 4.4.3

7.3.2 Design and development inputs	4.4.4
7.3.3 Design and development outputs	4.4.5
7.3.4 Design and development review	4.4.6
7.3.5 Design and development verification	4.4.7
7.3.6 Design and development validation	4.4.8
7.3.7 Control of design and development changes	4.4.9
7.4 Purchasing [title only]	
7.4.1 Purchasing process	4.6.2
7.4.2 Purchasing information	4.6.3
7.4.3 Verification of purchased product	4.6.4 4.10.2
7.5 Production and service provision [title only]	
7.5.1 Control of production and service provision	4.9 + 4.15.6 + 4.19
7.5.2 Validation of processes for production and service	4.9
7.5.3 Identification and traceability	4.8 + 4.10.5 + 4.12
7.5.4 Customer property	4.7
7.5.5 Preservation of product	4.15.2 + 4.15.3 + 4.15.4 + 4.15.5
7.6 Control of monitoring and measuring devices	4.10 + 4.20.1 + 4.20.2
8 Measurement, analysis and improvement [title only]	
8.1 General	4.11.1 + 4.11.2
8.2 Monitoring and measurement [title only]	
8.2.1 Feedback	
8.2.2 Internal audit	4.17
8.2.3 Monitoring and measurement of processes	4.17 + 4.20.1 + 4.20.2
8.2.4 Monitoring and measurement of product	4.10.2 + 4.10.3+ 4.10.4 + 4.10.5 + 4.20.1 + 4.20.2
8.3 Control of nonconforming product	4.13.1 + 4.13.2
8.4 Analysis of data	4.20.1 + 4.20.2
8.5 Improvement [title only]	
8.5.1 General	4.1.3
8.5.2 Corrective action	4.14.1 + 4.14.2
8.5.3 Preventive action	4.14.1 + 4.14.3
24	•

24

© ISO 2003 - All rights reserved

ISO 13485:2003(E)

Annex B (informative)

Explanation of differences between ISO 13485:2003 and ISO 9001:2000

This annex documents the similarities and differences between requirements clauses and subclauses and key informative clauses and subclauses of this International Standard and ISO 9001. It also provides a rationale for the differences between this International Standard and ISO 9001.

- a) For those clauses or subclauses of this International Standard that are quoted directly and unchanged from ISO 9001, the fact that these subclauses are presented unchanged is noted in this annex by a phrase appearing in square brackets [].
- b) For those clauses or subclauses from ISO 9001 that are changed in this International Standard by the addition of information or by tailoring it to be consistent with medical device

regulations, the entire original ISO 9001 text of the clause or subclause is reproduced in the left-hand column of this annex. The text of the corresponding clause or subclause in this International Standard is shown in the right-hand column.

- c) For those clauses or subclauses where this International Standard has deleted or amended the text of ISO 9001 by the deletion or significant modification of a substantive requirement, the entire original ISO 9001 text of the clause or subclause is reproduced in the left-hand column of this annex. The text of the corresponding clause or subclause in this International Standard and the reasons for the text changes are given in the right-hand column.
- d) The reasons for the differences between this International Standard and ISO 9001 are given in the righthand column. Where no "reason for differences" is given for an individual clause or subclause, the text differences between the two International Standards arises from the objective of ISO 13485 to reflect the current regulations and facilitate the harmonization of

new medical device regulations around the world.

ISO 9001:2000 ISO 13485:2003 0 Introduction 0 Introduction 0.1 General 0.1 General The adoption of a quality management system This International Standard specifies requirements be a strategic decision of an organization. The a quality management system that can be used by organization for the design and development. and implementation of an organization's quality management system is influenced by varying production installation and servicing of medical devices, and the design, development, and provision particular objectives, the products provided, the processes employed and the size and structure of of related services. organization. It is not the intent of this International Standard to imply uniformity in the structure of It can also be used by internal and external parties, management systems or uniformity of including certification bodies, to assess the organization's ability to meet customer and The quality management system requirements requirements.

The quality management system requirements fied in this International Standard are to requirements for products. Information marked "NOTE" is for guidance in understanding or the associated requirement.

It is emphasized that the quality management requirements specified in this International Standard are complementary to technical requirements for products.

Information marked "NOTE" is for guidance in understanding or clarifying the associated requirement.

© ISO 2003 - All rights reserved

25

ISO 13485:2003(E) ISO 9001:2000

This International Standard can be used by internal and external parties, including certification bodies, to assess the organization's ability to meet customer, regulatory and the organization's own requirements.

The quality management principles stated in ISO 9000 and ISO 9004 have been taken into consideration during the development of this International Standard.

ISO 13485:2003

The adoption of a quality management system should be a strategic decision of an organization. The design and implementation of an organization's quality management system is influenced by varying needs, particular objectives, the products provided, the processes employed and the size and structure of the organization. It is not the intent of this International Standard to imply uniformity in the structure of quality management systems or uniformity of documentation.

There is a wide variety of medical devices and some of the particular requirements of this International Standard only apply to named groups of medical devices. These groups are defined in Clause 3.

Reason for differences: Except for the contents of paragraph 4 of 0.1 of ISO 13485, any changes to the text of 0.1 of ISO 9001 is intended only to tailor this text for application to the medical device sector.

0.2 Process approach

0.2 Process approach

This International Standard promotes the adoption of a process approach when developing, implementing and improving the effectiveness of a quality management system, to enhance customer satisfaction by meeting customer requirements.

This International Standard is based on a process approach to quality management.

Any activity that receives inputs *and* converts them to outputs can be *considered* as a process. For an organization to function effectively, it has to identify and manage numerous linked activities. An activity using resources, and managed in order to enable the transformation of inputs into outputs, can be considered as a process. Often the output from one process directly forms the input: to the next.

The application of a system of processes within an organization, together with the identification and interactions of these processes, and their management, can be referred to as the "process approach".

An advantage of the process approach is the ongoing control that it provides over the linkage between the individual processes within the system of processes, as well as over their combination and interaction.

When used within a quality management system, such an approach emphasizes the importance of Far an organization to function effectively, it has to identify and manage numerous linked processes.

Often the output from one process directly forms the input to the next.

The application of a system of processes within an organization, together with the identification and interactions of these processes, and their management, can be referred to as the "process approach".

Reason for differences: Much of the guidance contained in 0.2 of ISO 9001 is being considered for inclusion in ISO/TR 14969, the Technical Report that is intended to provide guidance for the implementation of the requirements of ISO 13485. This information is included in this subclause of ISO 9001 because no such guidance document as ISO/TR 14969 exists. Because ISO/TR 14969 is being developed, the guidance text is not included in this subclause in ISO 13485.

- a) understanding and meeting requirements,
- b) the need to consider processes in terms of added value,
- c) obtaining results of process performance and effectiveness, and

26

© ISO 2003 -All rights reserved

ISO 13485:2003(E)

ISO 9001:2000	ISO 13485:2003
d) continual improvement of processes based on	
objective measurement.	
The model of a process-based quality management	
system shown in Figure 1 illustrates the process	
linkages presented in Clauses 4 to 8. This illustration	
shows that customers play a significant role in	
defining requirements as inputs. Monitoring of	
customer satisfaction requires the evaluation of information relating to customer perception as to	
whether the organization has Met the customer	
requirements. The model shown in Figure 1 covers all	
the requirements of this International Standard, but	
does not show processes at a detailed level.	
NOTE In addition, the methodology known as "Plan	
Do-Check-Act" (PDCA) can be applied to all	
PDCA can be briefly described as follows.	
Plan: establish the objectives and processes to	
deliver results in accordance with customer requirements and the organization's	

policies. Do: implement the processes. Check: monitor and measure processes and product against policies, objectives and requirements for the product and report the results. Act: take actions to continually improve process performance. Continual improvement of -~ the quality management system wesponsibili(y \ ant Clistomers customers R nag ment analyses and Salistacgon : improvement ,~_ !RegU remr to- - bPUt al'etion"'-J ' ProdUCt <OUtpul veiUB-addingaclivifies r. Information fib. Figure 1 - Model of a process-based quality

© ISO 2003-All rights reserved

27

ISO 13485:2003(E) ISO 9001:2000 ISO 13485:2003

management system

0.3 Relationship with ISO 9004

0.3 Relationship with other standards

The present editions of ISO 9001 and ISO 9004 have been developed as a consistent pair of quality management system standards which have been designed to complement each other, but can also be used independently. Although the two International Standards have different scopes, they have similar structures in order to assist their application as a consistent pair. ISO 9001 specifies requirements for a quality management system that can be used for internal application by organizations, or for certification, or for contractual purposes. It focuses on the effectiveness of the quality management system in meeting customer requirements. ISO 9004 gives guidance on a wider range of objectives of a quality management system than does ISO 9001, particularly for the continual improvement of an organization's overall performance and efficiency, as well as its effectiveness. ISO 9004 is recommended as a guide for organizations whose top management wishes to move beyond the requirements of ISO 9001, in pursuit of continual improvement of performance. However, it is not intended for certification or for contractual purposes.

0.3.1 Relationship with ISO 9009:2000

While this is a stand-alone standard, it is based on ISO 9009.

Those clauses or subclauses that are quoted directly and unchanged from ISO 9009 are in normal font. The fact that these subclauses are presented unchanged is noted in Annex B. Where the text of this International Standard is not identical to the text of ISO 9009, the sentence or indent containing that text as a whole is shown in italics (and blue italics for electronic versions). The nature and reasons for the text changes are noted in Annex B.

0.3.2 Relationship with ISOITR 14969

ISO/TR 14969 is a *Technical* Report *intended* to provide guidance for *the* application *of ISO* 13485.

Reason for differences: There is no significant relationship between ISO 13485 and ISO 9004. The key relationships that benefit from explanation' in this introductory subclause are the ones between ISO 13485 and ISO 9001 and ISO/TR 14969.

0.4 Compatibility with other management systems

0.4 Compatibility with other management systems

This International Standard has been aligned with ISO 14001:1996 in order to enhance the compatibility of the two standards for the benefit of the user community.

This International Standard does not include requirements specific to other management systems, such as those particular to environmental management, occupational health and safety management, financial management or risk management. However, this International Standard enables an organization to align or integrate its own quality management system with related management system requirements. It is possible for an organization to adapt its existing management system(s) in order to establish a quality management system that complies with the requirements of this International Standard.

This International Standard follows the format of ISO 9001 for the convenience of users in the medical device community.

This *International Standard* does not include *requirements specific to other* management systems, such as those particular to *environmental* management, occupational *health and* safety management, *or financial* management.

However, this International Standard enables an organization to align or integrate its own quality management system with related management system requirements. It is possible for an organization to adapt its existing management system(s) in order to establish a quality management system that complies with the requirements of this International Standard. Reason for differences: The first paragraph of 0.4 of ISO 13485 emphasizes the alignment of ISO 13485 with ISO 9001.

28

© ISO 2003 - All rights reserved

ISO 13485:2003(E)

ISO 9001:2000	ISO 13485:2003
	Risk management is a key requirement in many activities and requirements associated with quality management systems for medical device organizations.
1 Scope	1 Scope

1.1 General

This International Standard specifies requirements for a quality management system where: an organization

- a) needs to demonstrate its ability to consistently provide product that meets customer and applicable regulatory requirements, and
- b) aims to enhance customer satisfaction through the effective application of the system, including processes for continual improvement of the system and the assurance of conformity to customer and applicable regulatory requirements.

NOTE In this International Standard, the term "product" applies only to the product intended for, or required by, a customer.

1.1 General

This International Standard specifies requirements for

a quality management system where an organization needs to demonstrate its ability to provide medical devices and related services that consistently meet customer requirements and regulatory requirements applicable to medical devices and related services.

The primary objective of this International Standard is to facilitate harmonized medical device regulatory requirements for quality management systems. As a result, it includes some particular requirements for medical devices and excludes some of the requirements of ISO 9001 that are not appropriate as regulatory requirements. Because of these exclusions, organizations whose quality management systems conform to this International Standard cannot claim conformity to ISO 9001 unless their

quality management systems conform to all the requirements of ISO 9001 (see Annex B).

Reason for differences: This subdause uses and explains terms that are appropriate for the medical device sector. addition, the terms "customer satisfaction" and "continual improvement" are eliminated as they are not relevant in a standard whose objective is to facilitate the of medical device regulations for quality management systems around the world.

Paragraph 2 is intended to clarify that the intent of ISO 13485 is to facilitate the harmonization of regulatory quality management system requirements around the world, to point out that this intent requires the addition of some requirements not found in ISO 9001 and the of some requirements that are found in ISO 9001, and to clarify the fact that adherence to ISO 13485 cannot result the claim of adherence to ISO 9001.

The term "and related services" has been added twice to modify the term "medical devices" because "medical device" does not include "services" in its definition. This in contrast to ISO 9001, where the term "product" does

include "services" as part of its definition.

© ISO 2003 -All rights reserved

29

ISO 13485:2003(E) ISO 9001:2000 ISO 13485:2003 1.2 Application 1.2 Application

All requirements of this International Standard are generic and are intended to be applicable to all organizations, regardless of type, **\$120** and product provided.

All requirements of this International Standard are specific to organizations providing medical devices, regardless of the type or size of the organization.

Where any requirement(s) of this International Standard cannot be applied due to the nature of an organization and its product, this can be considered for exclusion.

Where exclusions are made, claims of conformity to this International Standard are not acceptable unless these exclusions are limited to requirements within Clause 7, and such exclusions do not affect the organization's ability, or responsibility, to provide product that meets customer and applicable regulatory requirements.

If regulatory requirements permit exclusions of design and development controls (see 7.3), this can be used as a justification for their exclusion from the quality management system. These regulations can provide alternative arrangements that must be addressed in the quality management system. It is the responsibility of the organization to ensure that claims of conformity with this International Standard reflect exclusion of design and development controls (see 4.2.2 a) and 7.31.

If any requirement(s) in Clause 7 of this International Standard is not applicable due to the nature of the medical device(s) for which the quality management system is applied, the organization does not need to include such a requirement(s) in its quality management system (see 4.2.2 a)].

The processes required by this International Standard, which are applicable to the medical device(s), but which are not performed by the organization, are the responsibility of the organization and are accounted for in the organization's quality management system (see 4.1 a)].

In this International Standard the terms "if appropriate" and "'where appropriate" are used several times. When a requirement is qualified by either of these phrases, it is deemed to be

"appropriate" unless the organization can document a justification otherwise. A requirement is considered "appropriate" if it is necessary in order for a) the product to meet **specified** requirements, and/or b) the organization to carry out corrective

Reason for differences: The text clarifies the fact that the requirements of ISO 13485 are specific to the medical device sector. In addition, it amplifies the relationship between exclusions for design and development that might have regulatory impact in certain locations in the world. Finally, it distinguishes between the requirements in Clause 7 which an organization may with regulatory justification exclude from its quality management system (limited to 7.3), even though they may perform activities to which those requirements relate, and those which the organization may with justification not include its quality management system because they relate to activities not performed by the organization.

30 ⊚ ISO 2003 - All rights reserved ISO 13485:2003(E)

ISO 9001:2000 ISO 13485:2003

action.

2 Normative reference

2 Normative references

The following normative document contains provisions which, through reference in this text, constitute provisions of this International Standard. For dated references, subsequent amendments to, or revisions of, any of these publications do not apply. However, parties to agreements based on this International Standard are encouraged to investigate the possibility of applying the most recent edition of the normative document indicated below. For undated references, the latest edition of the normative document referred to applies. Members of ISO and IEC maintain registers of currently valid International Standards.

The following *referenced documents* are *indispensable for the* application of this document. *For dated* references, only the edition cited applies. *For undated* references, the latest edition of the *referenced document (including any amendments) applies.*

ISO 9000:2000, Quality *management* systems - *Fundamentals and* vocabulary Reason for differences: The ISO 13485 text reflects a revision required by the 2001 edition of the ISO/IEC Directives, Part 2.

ISO 9000:2000, Quality management systems Fundamentals and vocabulary

3 Terms and definitions

3 Terms and definitions

For the purposes of this International Standard, the terms and definitions given in ISO 9000 apply.

The following terms, used in this edition of ISO 9001 to describe the supply chain, have been changed o reflect the vocabulary currently used:

supplier ----> organization ----> customer

The term "organization" replaces the term "supplier" used in ISO 9001:1994, and refers to the unit to which this International Standard applies. Also, the term "supplier" now replaces the term "subcontractor".

Throughout the text of this International Standard, wherever the term "product" occurs, it can also mean "service".

For the purposes of this *document*, the terms and definitions given in ISO 9000 apply, together with the following.

The following terms, used in this edition of ISO 13485 to describe the supply chain, have been changed to reflect the vocabulary currently used:

supplier ----> organization ----> customer

The term "organization" replaces the term "supplier" used in ISO 13485:1996, and refers to the unit to which this International Standard applies. Also, the term "supplier" now replaces the term "subcontractor".

Throughout the text of this International Standard, wherever the term "product" occurs, it can also mean "service".

Wherever requirements are specified as applying to "medical devices", the requirements apply equally to related services as supplied by the organization.

The following definitions should be regarded as generic, as definitions provided in national regulations can differ slightly and take ,precedence.

Reason for differences: The text *is* tailored for use in the medical device sector and also includes a caveat related to the fact that local regulations might have a definition that supercedes that contained or referenced in **ISO 13485.** Definitions 3.1 to 3.8 are specific to the medical device sector.

© ISO 2003 - All rights reserved

31

ISO 13485:2003(E)

ISO <u>9</u> 001: <u>2</u> 00 <u>0</u>	ISO 13485:2003
4 Quality management; system	4 Quality management system
4.1 General requirements	4.1 General requirements
The organization shall establish, document, implement and maintain a quality management system continually improve its effectiveness in accordance with the requirements of this International Standard,	The organization shall establish, document, imple ment and maintain a quality management system maintain its effectiveness in accordance with the requirements of this International Standard.
The organization shall	The organization shall
a) identify the processes needed for the quality management system and their application throughout the organization (see 1.2),	a) identify the processes needed for the quality management system and their application throughout the organization (see 1.2),
b) determine the sequence and interaction of these	b) determine the sequence and interaction of these
processes,	processes
c) determine criteria and methods needed to ensure that both the operation and control of these processes are effective,	c) determine criteria and methods needed to ensure that both the operation and control of these processes are effective,
d) ensure the availability of resources and information necessary to support the operation and monitoring of these processes,	d) ensure the availability of resources and inform ation necessary to support the operation and monitoring of these processes,
e) monitor, measure and analyze these processes,	e) monitor, measure and analyse these processes,
and	and
f) implement actions necessary to achieve planned results and continual improvement of these processes.	f) implement actions necessary to achieve planned results and maintain the effectiveness of these processes.
These processes shall be managed by the organization in accordance with the requirements of this International Standard.	These processes shall be managed by the organization in accordance with the requirements of this International Standard.
Where an organization chooses to outsource any	Where an organization chooses to outsource any
process that affects product conformity with requirements, the organization shall ensure control over such processes. Control of such outsourced processes shall be identified within the quality	process that affects product conformity with requirements, the organization shall ensure control over such processes. Control of such outsourced processes shall be identified within the quality
management system.	management system (see 8.5.1).

NOTE Processes needed for the quality

realization and measurement.

system referred to above should include processes

management activities, provision of resources,

realization and measurement.

NOTE Processes needed for the quality

system referred to above should include processes

management activities, provision of resources,

Reason for differences: The resulting text is consistent with the objectives of reflecting the current facilitating the harmonization of new medical device regulations around the world. Current regulations targeted at the effectiveness of the quality system to consistently produce safe and effective products.

32

© ISO 2003 - All rights reserved

IS <u>O 900</u> 1: <u>20</u> 00	ISO 13485:2003
4.2 Documentation requirements	4.2 Documentation requirements
4.2.1 General	4.2.1 General
The quality management system documentation shall	The quality management system documentation
include	shall include
a) documented statements of a quality policy and	a) documented statements of a quality policy and
quality objectives,	quality objectives,
b) a quality manual,	b) a quality manual,
c) documented procedures required by this Inter-	c) documented procedures required by this Inter
national Standard,	national Standard,
d) documents needed by the organization to ensure	d) documents needed by the organization to ensure
the effective planning, operation and control of its	the effective planning, operation and control of its
processes, and	processes,
e) records required by this International Standard	e) records required by this International Standard
(see 4.2.4).	(see 4.2.4), <i>and</i>
NOTE 1 Where the term "documented procedure"	f) any other documentation specified by national or
appears within this International Standard, this means the procedure is established, documented, implemented	regional regulations.
and maintained.	Where this International Standard specifies that a
NOTE 2 The extent of the quality management system	requirement, procedure, activity or special arrange
documentation can differ from one organization to due to	ment be "documented '; it shall, in addition, be implemented and maintained,
a) the size of the organization and type of activities,	
a) the size of the organization and type of activities,	For each type or model of medical device, the organization shall establish and maintain a file
b) the complexity of processes and their interactions, and	containing or identifying documents defining product
c) the competence of personnel.	specifications and quality management system requirements (see 4.2.3). These documents shall define the complete manufacturing process and if
NOTE 3 The documentation can be in any form or type of medium.	define the complete manufacturing process and, if applicable, installation and servicing.
	NOTE 1 The extent of the quality management system documentation can differ from one organization to due to
	a) the size of the organization and type of activities,
	b) the complexity of processes and their interactions, and

c) the competence of personnel. NOTE 2 The documentation can be in any form or type of medium. Reason for differences: The text in 4.2.1 of ISO 13485 includes all of the requirements contained in the corresponding subdause of ISO 9001, with the addition of a general statement related to regulations that might contain documentation requirements and a specific requirement for a file containing specified documents for ISO 2003 - All rights reserved 33 ISO 13485:2003(E) ISO 9001:2000 ISO 13485:2003 each type/model of medical device. In addition, the text includes the documentation requirements for activities and special arrangements. The resulting text is consistent with the objectives of reflecting the current regulations and facilitating the harmonization of new medical device regulations around the world. 4.2.2 Quality manual Quality manual 4.2.2 The organization shall establish and maintain quality manual that includes The organization shall establish and maintain a quality manual that includes b) the scope of the quality management system, including details of and/justification for any exclusion (see 1.2), the documented procedures established for the quality management system, or reference to them, and the scope of the quality *management* system, *including* details of and justification for any exclusion and/or non-application (see 1.2), b) the documented procedures established for the quality management system, or reference to them, and a description of the interaction between the processes of the quality management system. c) a description of the interaction between the processes of the quality management system. The quality manual shall outline the structure of the documentation used in the quality management system. 4.2.3 Control of documents 4.2.3 Control of documents Documents required by the quality management system shall be controlled. Records are a special type of document and shall be controlled according to the requirements given in 4.2.4. Documents required by the quality management system shall be controlled. Records are a special type of document and shall be controlled according to the requirements given in 4.2.4. A documented procedure shall be established to define the controls needed A documented procedure shall be established to define the controls needed a) to approve documents for adequacy prior to issue, to review and approve documents for adequacy prior to issue, b) to review and update as necessary and reapprove documents, b) to review and update as necessary and reapprove documents, c) d) e) to ensure that changes and the current revision status of documents are identified, to ensure that relevant versions of applicable documents are available at points of use, to ensure that documents remain legible and readily identifiable, to ensure that changes and the current revision status of documents are identified, d) to ensure that relevant versions of applicable documents are available at points of use. e) to ensure that documents remain legible and readily identifiable, f) g)

to ensure that documents of external origin are identified and their distribution controlled, and

to prevent the unintended use of obsolete documents, and to apply suitable identification to them if they are retained for any purpose.

f) to ensure that documents of external origin are identified and their distribution controlled, and

to prevent the unintended use of obsolete documents, and to apply suitable identification to them if they are retained for any purpose.

34 ⊚ ISO 2003 - All rights reserved ISO 13485:2003(E) ISO 9001:2000 ISO 13485:2003

The *organization* shall ensure that changes to documents are reviewed *and* approved either *by* the original approving *function* or another *designated function which* has access to pertinent background *information upon which to base its decisions*.

The *organization* shall define the period for which at least *one copy of* obsolete *controlled documents* shall *be retained. This period shall* ensure *that documents to which* medical devices have been *manufactured and* tested are available for at least the lifetime *of* the medical device as *defined* by the organization, but not less *than* the retention *period of any* resulting record (see 4.2.4), or as specified by relevant regulatory *requirements*.

4.2.4 Control of records

4.2.4 Control of records

Records shall be established and maintained to provide evidence of conformity to requirements and of the effective operation of the quality management system. Records shall remain legible, readily identifiable and retrievable. A documented procedure shall be established to define the controls needed for the identification, storage, protection, retrieval, retention time and disposition of records.

Records shall be established and maintained to provide evidence of conformity to requirements and of the effective operation of the quality management system. Records shall remain legible, readily identifiable and retrievable. A documented procedure shall be established to define the controls needed for the identification, storage, protection, retrieval, retention time and disposition of records.

The *organization* shall retain the records for a period *of* time at least equivalent to the lifetime *of* the medical device as *defined by* the organization, but not less *than* two years from the date *of* product release by the organization or as specified *by* relevant regulatory requirements.

5 Management responsibility

5 Management responsibility

5.1 Management commitment

5.1 Management commitment

Top management shall provide evidence of its commitment to the development and implementation of the quality management system and continually improving its effectiveness by

Top *management* shall provide evidence of its commitment to *the development* and implementation *of the quality management* system and maintaining its effectiveness *by*

- a) communicating to the organization the importance of meeting customer as well as statutory and regulatory requirements,
- a) communicating to the organization the importance of meeting customer as well as statutory and regulatory requirements,
- b) establishing the quality policy,
- c) ensuring that quality objectives are established,
- d) conducting management reviews, and
- e) ensuring the availability of resources.
- b) establishing the quality policy,
- c) ensuring that quality objectives are established,
- d) conducting management reviews, and
- e) ensuring the availability of resources.

© ISO 2003 -All rights reserved

35

I <u>S</u> O 9001:2000_	ISO 13485:2003
	NOTE For the purposes of this International Standard, statutory requirements are limited to the safety and performance of the medical device only.
	Reason for differences: This text is consistent with the objective of reflecting the current regulation and the harmonization of new medical device regulations around the world. Current regulations are targeted at the effectiveness of the quality management system to
	consistently produce safe and effective products.
5.2 Customer focus	5.2 Customer focus
Top management shall ensure that customer	Top management shall ensure that customer
requirements are determined and are met with the aim of enhancing customer satisfaction (see 7.2.1 and 8.2.1).	requirements are determined and are met (see 7.2.1 and 8.2.1).
	Reason for differences: The rewording of the text is consistent with the position that customer satisfaction is an appropriate regulatory objective of medical devices. As result, this text is consistent with the objective of ISO to facilitate the harmonization of quality management
	system regulations around the world.
5.3 Quality policy	5.3 Quality policy
Top management shall ensure that the quality policy	Top management shall ensure that the quality policy
a) is appropriate to the purpose of the organization,	a) is appropriate to the purpose of the organization,
b) includes a commitment to comply with requirements and continually improve the effectiveness of the quality management system,	b) includes a commitment to comply with require ments and to maintain the effectiveness of the quality management system,
c) provides a framework for establishing and reviewing quality objectives,	c) provides a framework for establishing and reviewing quality objectives,
d) is communicated and understood within the organization, and	d) is communicated and understood within the organization, and
e) is reviewed for continuing suitability.	e) is reviewed for continuing suitability.
	Reason for differences: The text of 5.3 of ISO 13485 eliminates from item b) the commitment to continually improve the effectiveness of the quality management system and substitutes the commitment to maintain the effectiveness of the quality management system. This substitution is consistent with the objective of current regulations and is intended to facilitate the harmonization quality management system regulations around the world.
	5.4 Planning
	[The text of 5.4 in ISO 13485 is identical to that in the
	corresponding subclause of ISO 9001.]
	1

36 © ISO 2003 -All rights reserved ISO 13485:2003(E)

ISO 9001:2000	ISO 13485:2003
5.5 Responsibility, authority and communication	5.5 Responsibility, authority and communication
5.5.1 Responsibility and authority	5.5.1 Responsibility and authority
Top management shall ensure that responsibilities and authorities are defined, documented and communicated within the organization.	Top management shall ensure that responsibilities and authorities are defined, documented and communicated within the organization. Top management shall establish the interrelation of all personnel who manage, perform and verify work affecting quality, and stall ensure the independence and authority necessary to perform these tasks. NOTE National or regional regulation might require the nomination of specific persons as responsible for related to monitoring experience from the post-production stage and reporting adverse events (see 8.2.1 and 8.5.1).
5.5.2 Management representative	5.5.2 Management representative
Top management shall appoint a member of management who, irrespective of other responsibilities, shall have responsibility and authority that includes:	Top management shall appoint a member of management who, irrespective of other respon sibilities, shall have responsibility and authority that includes
a) ensuring that processes needed for the quality management system are established, implemented and maintained;	a) ensuring that processes needed for the quality management system are established, imple mented and maintained;
 b) reporting to top management on the performance of the quality management system and any need for improvement; and 	b) reporting to top management on the performance of the quality management system and any need for improvement (see 8.5); and
c) ensuring the promotion of awareness of customer requirements throughout the organization. NOTE The responsibility off a management representative can include liaison with external parties	c) ensuring the promotion of awareness of regulatory and customer requirements through out the organization. NOTE The responsibility of a management representative can include liaison with external parties
matters relating to the quality management system.	matters relating to the quality management system.
	5.5.3 Internal communication
	[The text of 5.5.3 in ISO 13485 is identical to that in the corresponding subclause of ISO 9001.]
5.6 Management review	5.6 Management review
	5.6.1 General [The text of 5.6.1 in ISO 13485 is identical to that in

-		the corresponding subclause of ISO 9001.]
	2003-All rights reserved 37 13485:2003(E)	
	ISO 9001:2000	ISO 13485:2003
	Review input input to management review shall include information on results of audits,	5.6.2 Review input Theinput to management review shall include information on a) results of audits,
b)	customer feedback,	b) customer feedback,
c) d) e) f)	process performance and product conformity, status of preventive and corrective actions, follow-up actions from previous management reviews, changes that could affect the quality management system, and recommendations for improvement.	 c) process performance and product conformity, d) status of preventive and corrective actions, e) follow-up actions from previous management reviews, f) changes that could affect the quality man agement system, g) recommendations for improvement, and h) new or revised regulatory requirements
The	Review output output from the management review shall decisions and actions related to improvement of the effectiveness of the quality management system and its processes improvement of product related to customer requirements, and resource needs.	 5.6.3 Review output Theoutput from the management review shall any decisions and actions related to a) improvements needed to maintain the effec tiveness of the quality management system and its processes, b) improvement of product related to customer requirements, and c) resource needs.
The	Resource management Provision of resources organization shall determine and provide the urces needed to implement and maintain the quality management system and continually improve effectiveness, and to enhance customer satisfaction by meeting customer requirements.	6 Resource management 6.1 Provision of resources Theorganization shall determine and provide the resources needed a) to implement the quality management system and to maintain its effectiveness, and b) to meet regulatory and customer requirements.
6.2	Human resources	6.2Human resources

	6.2. 1 General
ļ	The text of 6.2.1 in ISO 13485 is identical to that in
1	the corresponding subclause of ISO 9001.]

38 ISO 2003 - All rights reserved

	ISO 9001:2000	ISO 13485:2003
.		
	2 Competence, awareness and training	6.2.2 Competence, awareness and training
The	organization shall	The organization shall
a)	determine the necessary competence for	a) determine the necessary competence for
	personnel performing work affecting quality,	personnel performing work affecting product quality,
b)	provide training or take other actions to caticfy these needs,	b) provide training or take other actions to eatiefy these needs,
c)	evaluate the effectiveness of the actions	c) evaluate the effectiveness of the actions taken,
d)	ensure that its personnell are aware of the relevance and importance of their activities	d) ensure that its personnel are aware of the relevance and importance of their activities and how they contribute to the achievement of the quality objectives, and
	quanty ourcess on, and	e) maintain appropriate records of education, training, skills and experience (see 4.2.4).
e)	maintain appropriate records of education, training, skills and experience, training, experience (see 4.2.4).	NOTE National or regional regulations might require the organization to establish documented procedures for
		identifying training needs.
6.3	Infrastructure	6.3 Infrastructure
The	organization shall determine, provide and	The organization shall determine, provide and
con	ntain the infrastructure needed to achieve formity to product requirements.	maintain the infrastructure needed to achieve conformity to product requirements.
incl	udes, as applicable	includes, as applicable
a)	buildings, workspace and associated utilities,	a) buildings, workspace and associated utilities,
b)	process equipment (both hardware and	b) process equipment (both hardware and soft
		ware), and
c)	supporting services (such as transport or	c) supporting services (such as transport or
	communication).	communication).
		The organization shall establish documented
		requirements for maintenance activities, including their frequency, when such activities or lack thereof can affect product quality.
ì		Records of such maintenance shall be maintained
		(see 4.2.4).

The organization shall determine and manage work environment needed to achieve product requirements.

The organization shall determine and manage work environment needed to achieve conformity product requirements. The following requirements shall apply.

a) The organization shall establish documented requirements for health, cleanliness and clothing of personnel if contact between such personnel

© ISO 2003 - All rights reserved

39

ISO 13485:2003(E)

ISO 9001:2000	ISO 13485:2003
	and the product or work environment could adversely affect the quality of the product (see 7.5.1.2.1).
	b) If work environment conditions can have an
	adverse effect on product quality, the organ ization shall establish documented requirements for the work environment conditions and documented procedures or work instructions to monitor and control these work environment conditions (see 7.5.1.2.1).
	c) The organization shall ensure that all personnel who are required to work temporarily under special environmental conditions within the work environment are appropriately trained or supervised by a trained person (see 6.2.2 b)].
	d) If appropriate, special arrangements shall be established and documented for the control of contaminated or potentially contaminated product in order to prevent contamination of other product, the work environment or
	personnel (see 7.5.3.1).

7 Product realization

7.1 Planning of product realization

The organization shall plan and develop the processes needed for product realization. Planning product realization shall be consistent with the requirements of the other processes of the quality management system (see 4.1).

In planning product realization, the organization determine the following, as appropriate:

- a) quality objectives and requirements for the
- provide resources specific to the product;

7 Product realization

7.1 Planning of product realization

The organization shall plan and develop the processes needed for product realization. Planning product realization shall be consistent with the requirements of the other processes of the quality management system (see 4.1).

In planning product realization, the organization

determine the following, as appropriate:

- a) quality objectives and requirements for the product:
- b) the need to establish processes, documents, and b) the need to establish processes, documents, and provide resources specific to the product;

product:

- c) required verification, validation, monitoring, inspection and test activities specific to the product and the criteria for product, acceptance;
- d) records needed to provide evidence that the realization processes and resulting product meet requirements (see 4.2.4).

The output of this planning shall be in a form

for the organization's method of operations.

c) required verification, validation, monitoring, in spection and test activities specific to the product and the criteria for product acceptance;

d) records needed to provide evidence that the realization processes and resulting -product meet requirements (see 4.2.4).

The output of this planning shall be in a form

for the organization's method of operations.

© ISO 2003 - All rights reserved

ISO 13485:2003(E)

ISO 9001:2000 ISO 13485:2003

NOTE 1 A document specifying the processes of the The organization shall establish documented quality management system (including the product realization processes) and the resources to be specific product, project or contract, can be referred quality plan.

NOTE 2 The organization, may also apply the requirements given in 7.3 to the development of realization processes.

requirements for risk management throughout product realization. Records arising from risk management shall be maintained (see 4.2.).

NOTE 1 A document specifying the processes of quality management system (including the product realization processes) and the resources to be specific product, project or contract, can be referred quality plan.

NOTE 2 The organization may also apply the requirements given in 7.3 to the development of realization processes.

NOTE 3 See ISO 14971 for guidance related to risk management.

Reason for differences: To make the resulting text consistent with the objective of reflecting the current regulations and facilitating the harmonization of new medical device regulations around the world. Risk management is a key activity that determines the and amount of activity in many of the areas the medical device organization's quality system.

7.2 Customer-related processes

7.2 Customer-related processes

7.2.1 Determination of requirements related to the product

The text of 7.2.1 in ISO 13485 is identical to that in the corresponding subclause of ISO 9001.]

7.2.2 Review of requirements related to the product

The organization shall review the requirements related to the product. This review shall be prior to the organization's commitment to supply a product to the customer (e.g. submission of tenders, acceptance of contracts or orders, acceptance of

7.2.2 Review of requirements related to the product

The organization shall review the requirements related to the product. This review shall be prior to the organization's commitment to supply a product to the customer (e.g. submission of tenders, acceptance of contracts or orders, acceptance of

changes to contracts or orders) and shall ensure

- a) product requirements are defined,
- b) contract or order requirements differing from those previously expressed are resolved, and
- c) the organization has the ability to meet the defined requirements.

Records of the results of the review and actions arising from the review shall be maintained (see 4.2.4).

changes to contracts or orders) and shall ensure

- a) product requirements are defined and documented,
- b) contract or order requirements differing from those previously expressed are resolved, and
- c) the organization has the ability to meet the defined requirements.

Records of the results of the review and actions arising from the review shall be maintained (see 4.2.4).

© ISO 2003-All rights reserved

41

ISO 13485:2003(E)

ISO 9001:2000

Where the customer provides no documented statement of requirement, the customer shall be confirmed by the organization before acceptance.

Where product requirements are changed, the organization shall ensure that relevant documents amended and that relevant personnel are made aware of the changed requirements.

NOTE In some situations, such as internet sales, a formal review is impractical for each order. Instead review can cover relevant product information such catalogues or advertising material.

7.2.3 Customer communication

The organization shall determine and implement effective arrangements for communicating with customers in relation to

- a) product information,
- b) enquiries, contracts or order handling, including amendments,
- c) customer feedback, including customer complaints.

ISO 13485:2003

Where the customer provides no documented statement of requirement, the customer shall be confirmed by the organization before acceptance.

Where product requirements are changed, the organization shall ensure that relevant documents amended and that relevant personnel are made aware of the changed requirements.

NOTE In some situations, such as internet sales, a formal review is impractical for each order. Instead review can cover relevant product information such catalogues or advertising material.

7.2.3 Customer communication

The organization shall determine and implement effective arrangements for communicating with customers in relation to

- a) product information,
- b) enquiries, contracts or order handling, including amendments.
- c) customer feedback, including customer com plaints (see 8.2.1), and
- d) advisory notices (see 8.5.1).

7.3 Design and development

7.3.1 Design and development planning

The organization shall plan and control the design and development of product.

During the design and development planning, the

7.3 Design and development

7.3.1 Design and development planning

The' organization shall establish documented procedures for design and development.

The organization shall plan and control the design

organization shall determine

- a) the design and development stages,
- b) the review, verification and validation that are appropriate to each design and development stage, and
- development.

The organization shall manage the interfaces between different groups involved in design and development to ensure effective communication clear assignment of responsibility.

the design and development progresses (see 4.2.3).

and development of product,

During the design and development planning, the organization shall determine

- a) the design and development stages,
- b) the review, verification, *validation and* design c) the responsibilities and authorities for design and transfer activities (see Note) that are appropriate at each design and development stage, and
 - c) the responsibilities and authorities for design.and development.

The organization shall manage the interfaces between different groups involved in design and Planning output shall be updated as appropriate, as development to ensure effective communication and

clear assignment of responsibility.

42

0 ISO 2003-All rights reserved ISO 13485:2003(E)

IS <u>O</u> <u>900</u> 1:2000	ISO 13485:2003
	Planning output shall be documented, and updated as appropriate, as the design and development progresses (see 4.2.3).
	NOTE Design transfer activities during the design
	development process ensure that design and outputs are verified as suitable for manufacturing
	becoming final production specifications.
	Reason for differences: This text is consistent with
	objective of reflecting the current regulations and the harmonization of new medical device regulations around the world. In general, ISO 13485 retains the level of documented procedure requirements ISO 9001:1994, the standard with which many local
	regulations are consistent.
7.3.2 Design and development inputs	7.3.2 Design and development inputs
Inputs relating to product requirements shall be determined and records maintained (see 4.2.4). These inputs shall include	Inputs relating to product requirements shall be determined and records maintained (see 4.2.4). These inputs shall include
a) functional and performance requirements,	a) functional, performance and safety requirements,
b) applicable statutory and regulatory requirements,	according to the intended use,
c) where applicable, information derived from	b) applicable statutory and regulatory requirements,
previous similar designs, and	c) where applicable, information derived from
d) other requirements essential for design and development.	previous similar designs, d) other requirements essential for design and
These inputs shall be reviewed for adequacy. Requirements shall be complete, unambiguous and	development, and e) output(s) of risk management (see 7.1).
not in conflict with each other.	

	These inputs shall be reviewed for adequacy and approved.
	Requirements shall be complete, unambiguous and
	not in conflict with each other.
7.3.3 Design and development outputs	7.3.3 Design and development outputs
The outputs of design and development shall be provided in a form that enables verification against the design and development: input and shall be approved prior to release.	The outputs of design and development shall be provided in a form that enables verification against the design and development input and shall be approved prior to release.
Design and development outputs shall	Design and development outputs shall
a) meet the input requirements for design and development,	a) meet the input requirements for design and development,
b) provide appropriate information for purchasing,	b) provide appropriate information for purchasing,
production and for service provision,	production and for service provision,

© ISO 2003 - All rights reserved

43

ISO 13485:2003(E)

ISO 9001:2000

c) contain or reference product acceptance criteria, and ISO 13485:2003

- c) contain or reference product acceptance criteria, and
- d) specify the characteristics of the product that are essential for its safe and proper use.
- d) specify the characteristics of the product that are essential for its safe and proper use.

Records of the design and development outputs shall be maintained (see 4.2.4).

NOTE Records of design and development outputs can include specifications, manufacturing procedures, engineering drawings, and engineering or research logbooks.

- 7.3.4 Design and development review
- 7.3.4 Design and development review

At suitable stages, systematic reviews of design and development shall be performed in accordance with planned arrangements (see 7.3.1)

At suitable stages, systematic reviews of design and development shall be performed in accordance with planned arrangements (see 7.3.1)

- a) to evaluate the ability of the results of design and development to meet requirements, and
- a) to evaluate the ability of the results of design and development to meet requirements, and
- b) to identify any problems and propose necessary actions.
- b) to identify any problems and propose necessary actions.

Participants in such reviiews shall include representatives of functions concerned with the design and development stage(s) being reviewed. Records of the results of the reviews and any necessary actions shall be maintained (see 4.2.4).

Participants in such reviews shall *include* representatives of functions *concerned* with the design and development stage(s) being reviewed, as well as other specialist personnel (see 5.5.1 and 6.2.1).

Records of the results of the reviews and any necessary actions shall be maintained (see 4.2.4).

7.3.5

Design and development

verification

[The text of 7.3.5 in ISO 13485 is identical to that in the corresponding subdause of ISO 9001.1

7.3.6 Design and development validation

7.3.6 Design and development validation

Design and development: validation shall be performed in accordance with planned arrangements (7.3.1) to ensure that the resulting product is capable of meeting the requirements for the specified application or intended use, where known. Wherever practicable, validation shall/ be completed prior to the delivery or implementation of the product. Records of the results of validation and any necessary actions shall be maintained (see 4.2.4)

Design and development validation shall be performed in accordance with planned arrangements (see 7.3.1) to ensure that the resulting product is capable of meeting the requirements for the specified application or intended use. Validation shall be completed prior to the delivery or implementation of the product (see Note 1).

Records of the results of validation and any necessary actions shall be maintained (see 4.2.4).

As part of design and development validation; the organization shall perform clinical evaluations and/or evaluation of performance of the medical device, as required by national or regional regulations (see Note 2).

44

© ISO 2003 - All rights reserved

ISO 13485:2003(E)

ISO 9001:2000

ISO 13485:2003

NOTE 9 If a medical device can only be validated following assembly and installation at point of use, delivery is not considered to be complete until the product has been formally transferred to the customer.

NOTE 2 Provision of the medical device for purposes of clinical evaluations and/or evaluation of performance is not considered to be delivery.

7.3.7

Control of design and development

changes

[The text of 7.3.7 in ISO 13485 is identical to that in the corresponding subclause of ISO 9001.]

7.4 Purchasing

7.4 Purchasing

- 7.4.1 Purchasing process
- 7.4.1 Purchasing process

The organization shall ensure that purchased product conforms to specified purchase requirements. The type and extent of control applied to the supplier and the purchased product shall be dependent upon the effect of the purchased product on subsequent product realization or the final product.

The organization shall evaluate and select suppliers based on their ability to supply product in accordance with the organization's requirements. Criteria for selection, evaluation and re"evaluation shall be established. Records of the results of evaluations and any necessary actions arising from the evaluation shall be maintained (see 4.2.4).

The organization shall establish documented procedures to ensure that purchased product conforms to specified purchase requirements.

The type and extent of control applied to the supplier and the purchased product shall be dependent upon the effect of the purchased product on subsequent product realization or the final product.

The organization shall evaluate and select suppliers based on their ability to supply product in accordance with the organization's require-ments. Criteria for selection, evaluation and reevaluation shall be established. Records of the results of evaluations and any necessary actions arising from the evaluation shall be maintained (see 4.2.4).

7.4.2 Purchasing information

7.4.2 Purchasing information

Purchasing information shall describe the product to be purchased, including where appropriate Purchasing information shall describe the product to be purchased, including where appropriate

requirements for approval of product, cedures, processes, and equipment, pro

a)

requirements for approval of product, procedures, processes and equipment,

- b) requirements for qualification of personnel, and
- b) requirements for qualification of personnel, and

- c) quality management system requirements.
- c) quality management system requirements.

The organization shall ensure the adequacy of specified purchase requirements prior to their communication to the supplier.

The organization shall ensure the adequacy of specified purchase requirements prior to their communication to the supplier.

To the extent required for traceability given in 7.5.3.2, the organization shall maintain relevant purchasing information, i.e. documents (see 4.2.3) and records (see 4.2.4). © ISO 2003 - All rights reserved

ISO 13485:2003
7.4.3 Verification of purchased product
The organization shall establish and implement the inspection or other activities necessary for ensuring that purchased product meets specified purchase requirements.
Where the organization or its customer intends to perform verification at the supplier's premises, the organization shall state the intended verification arrangements and method of product release in the purchasing information. Records of the verification shall be <i>maintained</i>
(see 4.2.4).
7.5 Production and service provision
7.5.1 Control of production and service
provision
7.5.1.1 General requirements
The organization shall plan and carry out production
and service provision under controlled conditions.
Controlled conditions shall include, as applicable
a) the availability of information that describes the characteristics of the product,
b) the availability of documented procedures;
documented requirements, work instructions, and reference materials and reference measurement procedures as necessary,
c) the use of suitable equipment,
d) the availability and use of monitoring and measuring devices,
e) the implementation of monitoring and measure ment,
f) the implementation of release, delivery and post
f) the implementation of release, delivery and post
delivery activities, and

labelling and packaging.

The *organization* shall establish and *maintain a* record (see 4.2.4) for each *batch* of medical devices that provides traceability to the extent specified in 7.5.3 and *identifies* the *amount manufactured* and amount approved for *distribution*. The batch record shall be verified *and* approved.

NOTE A batch can be a single medical device.

46

© ISO 2003-All rights reserved

ISO 9001:2000	ISO 13485:2003
	7.5.1.2 Control of production and service
	provision - Specific requirements
	7.5.1.2.1 Cleanliness of product and
	contamination control The organization shall establish documented require ments for cleanliness of product if
	a) product is cleaned by the organization prior to
	sterilization and/or its use, or
	b) product is supplied non-sterile to be subjected to a cleaning process prior to sterilization and/or its use, or
	c) product is supplied to be used non-sterile and its
	cleanliness is of significance in use, or
	d) process agents are to be removed from product
	during manufacture.
	If product is cleaned in accordance with a) or b) above, the requirements contained in 6.4 a) and 6.4 b) do not apply prior to the cleaning process.
	7.5.1.2.2 Installation activities
	If appropriate, the organization shall establish documented requirements which contain criteria for installing and verifying the installation of the medical device. If the agreed customer requirements allow to be performed other than by the organization or its authorized agent, the organization shall provide documented requirements for installation and verification.
	Records of installation and verification performed by
	the organization or its authorized agent shall be maintained (see 4.2.4).

7.5.1.2.3 Servicing activities

if servicing is a specified requirement, the organ ization shall establish documented procedures, instructions and reference materials and reference measurement procedures, as necessary, for performing servicing activities and verifying that meet the specified requirements.

Records of servicing activities carried out by the organization shall be maintained (see 4.2.4). NOTE Servicing can include, for example, repair

maintenance.

© ISO 2003 - All rights reserved

47

ISO 9001:2000	ISO 13485:2003
	7.5.1.3 Particular requirements for sterile
	medical devices
	The organization shall maintain records of the
	process parameters for the sterilization process which was used for each sterilization batch (see 4.2.4). Sterilization records shall be traceable each production batch <i>of</i> medical devices
	(see 7.5.1.1).
7.5.2 Validation of processes for production and	7.5.2 Validation of processes for production and
service provision	service provision
The organization shall validate any processes for	7.5.2.1 General requirements
production and service provision where the resulting output cannot be verified by subsequent monitoring or measurement. This includes any processes where deficiencies become apparent only after the product is in use or the service has been delivered. Validation shall demonstrate the ability of these	The organization shall validate any processes for production and service provision where the resulting
processes to achieve planned results.	is in use or the service has been delivered.
The organization shall establish arrangements for	Validation shall demonstrate the ability of these
these processes including, as applicable	processes to achieve planned results.
a) defined criteria for review and approval of the processes,	The organization shall establish arrangements for these processes including as applicable
b) approval of equipment and qualification of	a) defined criteria for review and approval of the
personnel,	processes,
c) use of specific methods and procedures,	b) approval of equipment and qualification of personnel,
d) requirements for records (see 4.2.4), and	
e) revalidation.	c) use of specific methods and procedures,
-, · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	d) requirements for records (see 4.2.4), and

e) revalidation.
The organization shall establish documented pro
cedures for the validation of the application of computer software (and changes to such software and/or its application) for production and service provision that affect the ability of the product to conform to specified requirements. Such software applications shall be validated prior to initial use.
Records <i>of</i> validation shall be maintained (see 4.2.4)
7.5.2.2 Particular requirements for sterile
medical devices
The organization shall establish documented pro
cedures for the validation of sterilization processes.

48 © ISO 2003 - All rights reserved

ISO 90011:2000	ISO 13485:200
	Sterilization processes shall be validated prior to initial use.
	Records of validation of each sterilization process
	shall be maintained (see 4.2.4).
7.5.3 Identification and traceability	7.5.3 Identification and traceability
Where appropriate, the organization shall identify	7.5.3.1 identification
realization. The organization shall identify the product status with respect to monitoring and measurement require-	The organization shall identify the product by means throughout product realization, and shall establish documented procedures for such product identification
ments. Where traceability is a requirement, the organization shall control and record the unique identification the product (see 4.2.4).	The organization shall establish documented pro cedures to ensure that medical devices returned to the organization are identified and distinguished fro conforming product (see 6.4 d)].
NOTE In some industry sectors, configuration management is a means by which identification raceability are maintained.	75.3.2 Traceability
	7.5.3.2.9 General
	The organization shall establish documented pro
	cedures for traceability. Such procedures shall the extent of product traceability and the records required (see 4.2.4, 8.3 and 8.5).
	Where traceability is a requirement, the organization shall control and record the unique identification the product (see 4.2.4).
	NOTE Configuration management is a means by which identification and traceability can be

7.5.3.2.2 Particular requirements for active implantable medical devices and implantable medical devices

fn defining the records required for traceability, the organization shall include records of alt components, materials and work environment conditions. if these could cause the medical device not to satisfy its specified requirements.

The organization shall require that its agents or distributors maintain records of the distribution of medical devices to allow traceability and that such records are available for inspection.

Records of the name and address of the shipping

package consignee shall be maintained (see 4.2.4).

© ISO 2003 - All rights reserved

49

ISO 13485:2003(E)

ISO 9001:2000

ISO 13485:2003

7.5.3.3

Status identification

The organization shall identify the product status with respect to monitoring and measurement requirements.

The *identification of* product status shall be maintained *throughout production*, storage; installation *and* servicing *of* the product to ensure that only product that has passed the *required* inspections and tests (or released *under* an authorized concession) is *dispatched*, *used or* installed.

7.5.4 Customer property

7.5.4 Customer property

The organization shall exercise care with customer property while it is under the organization's control or being used by the organization. The organization shall identify, verify, protect and safeguard customer property provided for use or incorporation into the product. If any customer property is lost, damaged or otherwise found to be unsuitable for use, this shall be reported to the customer and records maintained (see 4.2.4).

The organization shall exercise care with customer property while it is under the organization's control or being used by the organization. The organization shall identify, verify, protect and safeguard customer property provided for use or incorporation into the product. If any customer property is lost, damaged or otherwise found to be unsuitable for use, this shall be reported to the customer and records maintained (see 4.2.4).

NOTE Customer property can include property.

intellectual

NOTE Customer property can include property or confidential health information. intellectual

7.5.5 Preservation of pro perty

7.5.5 Preservation of property

The organization shall preserve the conformity of product during internal processing and delivery to the intended destination. This preservation shall include identification, handling, packaging, storage and protection. Preservation shall also apply to the constituent parts of a product.

The organization shall *establish* documented procedures *or documented work instructions for* preserving *the* conformity of product *during* internal processing and delivery to the intended destination.

This preservation shall include identification, handling, packaging, storage and protection. Preservation shall also apply to the constituent parts of a product.

The organization shall *establish documented* procedures *or* documented work instructions *for* the control of product with a limited shelf-life or requiring special storage *conditions*. Such special storage *conditions* shall be controlled and recorded (see 4.2.4).

7.6 Control of monitoring and measuring devices

7.6 Control of monitoring and measuring devices

The organization shall determine the monitoring and measurement to be undertaken and the monitoring and measuring devices needed to provide evidence of conformity of product to determined requirements (see 7.2.1).

The organization shall determine the monitoring and measurement to be undertaken and the monitoring and measuring devices needed to provide evidence of conformity of product to determined requirements (see 7.2.1).

The organization shall establish processes to ensure <u>that</u> monitoring and measurement can be carried out

The organization shall *establish documented* pro<u>cedures to ensure that monitoring and measurement</u>

50

ISO 90011:2000	ISO 13485:2003
and are carried out in a manner that is consistent	can be carried out .and are carried out in a manner
the monitoring and measurement requirements.	that is <i>consistent</i> with the monitoring <i>and</i> measure
Where necessary to ensure valid results, measuring	ment requirements.
equipment shall:	Where necessary to ensure valid results, measuring
a) be calibrated or verified at. specified intervals, or	equipment shall
prior to use, against measurement standards traceable to international or national measurement standards; where no such standards exist, the basis used for calibration or verification shall be recorded;	a) be calibrated or verified at specified intervals, or prior to use, against measurement standards traceable to international or national measure ment standards; where no such standards exist, the basis used for, calibration or verification shall
b) be adjusted or re-adjusted as necessary;	be recorded;
c) be identified to enable the calibration status to be	b) be adjusted or re-adjusted as necessary;
determined;	c) be identified to enable the calibration status to be determined;
 d) be safeguarded from adjustments that would invalidate the measurement result; 	d) be safeguarded from adjustments that would invalidate the measurement result;
e) be protected from damage and deterioration during handling, maintenance and storage.	e) be protected from damage and deterioration during handling, maintenance and storage.
In addition, the organization shall assess and record the validity of the previous measuring results when	In addition, the organization shall assess and record
the equipment is found not to conform to requirements. The organization shall take appropriate on the equipment and any product affected. of the results of calibration and verification shall be maintained (see 4.2.4).	the validity of the previous measuring results when the equipment is found not to conform to require ments. The organization shall take appropriate on the equipment and any product affected. Records of the results of calibration and verification shall be

When used in the monitoring and measurement of specified requirements, the ability of soft-computer

confirmed. This shall be undertaken prior to initial and reconfirmed as necessary (see 7.5.2).

NOTE See ISO 10012-1 and ISO 10012-2 for quidance.

NOTE See ISO 10012 for guidance related to

and reconfirmed as necessary.

When used in the monitoring and measurement of

specified requirements, the ability of computer soft ",,,are to satisfy the intended application shall be

confirmed. This shall be undertaken prior to initial

maintained (see 4.2.4).

measurement management systems. 8 Measurement, analysis and 8 Measurement, analysis and improvement improvement 8.1 General 8.1 General The organization shall plan and implement the The organization shall plan and implement the monitoring, measurement, analysis and monitoring, measurement, analysis and processes needed processes needed a) to demonstrate conformity of the product, a) to demonstrate conformity of the product, b) to ensure conformity of the quality management b) to ensure conformity of the quality management system, and system, and c) to continually improve the effectiveness of the c) to *maintain the effectiveness* of the quality quality management system. management system.

© ISO 2003 - All rights reserved 51

ICO 4240E-2002/E

ISO 13485:2003(E)		
IS <u>O</u> <u>90</u> 01:2000	ISO 13485:2003	
This shall include determination of applicable methods, including statistical techniques, and the extent of their use.	This shall include determination of applicable methods, including statistical techniques, and the extent of their use.	
	NOTE National or regional regulations might require documented procedures for implementation and the application of statistical techniques.	
	Reason for differences: To make the resulting text consistent with the objective of reflecting the current regulations and facilitating the harmonization of new medical device regulations around the world. The of medical device regulations is the maintenance of effectiveness of the quality management system to consistent produce medical devices that are safe effective, not the continual improvement of the management system.	
8.2 Monitoring and measurement	8.2 Monitoring and measurement	
8.2.1 Customer satisfaction	8.2.1 Feedback	
As one of the measurements of the performance of the quality management system, the organization shall monitor information relating to customer	As one <i>of</i> the measurements <i>of</i> the performance <i>of</i> the quality management system, the <i>organization</i> shall monitor <i>information</i> relating to whether the	

perception as to whether the organization has met customer requirements. The methods for obtaining and using this information shall be determined.

organization has met customer requirements.

The methods for obtaining and using this information shall be determined.

The organization shall establish a documented procedure for a feedback system [see 7.2.3 c)] to provide early warning of quality problems and for input into the corrective and preventive action

processes (see 8.5.2 <i>and 8.5.3</i>).
If national or regional regulations require the organization to gain experience from the post production phase, the review of this experience shall form part of the feedback system (see 8.5.1). Reason for differences: Both "customer satisfaction"
"customer perception" are too subjective for as requirements in a regulation. The resulting text is consistent with the objective of reflecting the current regulations and facilitating the harmonization of new medical device regulations around the world.
8.2.2 Internal audit
NOTE See ISO 19011 for guidance related to quality auditing.
[The text of 8.2.2 of ISO 13485 is identical to that of the corresponding subdause of ISO 9001, with the exception of the NOTE above.]
exception of the NOTE above.]

52

© ISO 2003 - All rights reserved

ISO 13485:2003(E) ISO 90011:2000 ISO 13485:2003

8.2.3 Monitoring and measurement of processes

[The text of 8.2.3 of ISO 13485 is identical to that of the corresponding subdause of ISO 9001]

8.2.4 Monitoring and measurement of product

8.2.4 Monitoring and measurement of product

The organization shall monitor and measure the characteristics of the product to verify that product requirements have been met. This shall be carried out at appropriate stages of the product realization process in accordance with the planned arrangements (see 7.1). Evidence of conformity with the acceptance criteria shall be maintained. Records shall indicate

the person(s) authorizing release off product (see 4.2.4). 8.2.4.9 General requirements

The organization shall monitor and measure the characteristics of the product to verify that product requirements have been met. This shall be carried out at appropriate stages of the product realization process in accordance with the planned arrangements (see 7.1) and documented procedures (see 7.5.1.1).

Product release and service: delivery shall not proceed until the planned arrangements (see 7.1) have been satisfactorily completed, unless otherwise approved by a relevant authority and, where applicable, by the customer.

Evidence of conformity with the acceptance criteria shall be maintained. Records shall indicate the person(s) authorizing release of product (see 4.2.4).

Product release and service delivery shall not proceed until the planned arrangements (see 7.1) have been satisfactorily completed.

implantable devices and implantable devices

Particular requirement for active

The organization shall record (see 4.2.4) the identity of personnel performing any inspection or testing.

8.3 Control of nonconforming product

8.3 Control of nonconforming product

The organization shall ensure that product which does not conform to product requirements is identified and controlled to prevent its unintended use or delivery. The controls and related responsibilities and authorities for dealing with nonconforming product shall be defined in a documented procedure.

The organization shall ensure that product which does not conform to product requirements is identified and controlled to prevent its unintended use or delivery. The controls and related responsibilities and authorities for dealing with nonconforming product shall be defined in a documented procedure.

The organization shall deal with nonconforming product by one or more of the following ways: The organization shall deal with nonconforming product by one or more of the following ways:

- a) by taking action to eliminate the detected nonconformity;
- a) by taking action to eliminate the detected nonconformity;
- b) by authorizing its use, release or acceptance under concession by a relevant authority and, where applicable, by the customer:
- c) by taking action to preclude its original intended use or application. Records of the nature of nonconformities and any subsequent actions taken, including concessions obtained, shall be maintained (see 4.2.4).
- b) by authorizing its use, release or acceptance under concession;
- c) by taking action to preclude its original intended use or application.

The organization shall ensure that nonconforming product is accepted by concession only if regulatory requirements are met. Records of the identity of the person(s) authorizing the concession shall be maintained (see 4.2.4).

© ISO 2003-All rights reserved

53

ISO 13485:2003(E)

ISO 9001:2000

When nonconforming product is corrected it shall be subject to re-verification to demonstrate conformity to the requirements.

When nonconforming product is detected after delivery or use has started, the organization shall take action appropriate to the effects, or potential effects, of the nonconformity.

ISO 13485:2003

Records of the nature of nonconformities and any subsequent actions taken, including concessions obtained, shall be maintained (see 4.2.4).

When nonconforming product is corrected it shall be subject to re-verification to demonstrate conformity to the requirements.

When nonconforming product is detected after delivery or use has started, the organization shall take action appropriate to the effects, or potential effects, of the nonconformity.

If product needs to be reworked (one or more times), the organization shall document the rework process in a work instruction that has undergone the same authorization and approval procedure as the original work instruction. Prior to authorization and approval of the work instruction, a determination of any adverse effect of the rework upon product shall be made and documented (see 4.2.3 and 7.5.1).

8.4 Analysis of data

The organization shall determine, collect and analyse appropriate data to demonstrate the suitability and effectiveness of the quality management system and to evaluate where continual improvement of the effectiveness of the quality management system can be made. This shall include data generated as a result of monitoring and measurement and from other relevant sources.

The analysis of data shall provide information relating to

a) customer

8.4 Analysis of data

The organization shall establish documented pro cedures to determine, collect and analyse appropriate data to demonstrate the suitability and effectiveness of the quality management system and to evaluate if improvement of the effectiveness of the quality management system can be made.

This shall include data generated as a result of monitoring and measurement and from other relevant sources.

The analysis of data shall provide information relating

satisfaction (see 8.2.1),	to
b) conformity to product requirements (see 7.2.1),	a) feedback (see 8.2.1),
c) characteristics and trends of processes and products including apportunities for preventive action, and	b) conformity to product requirements (see 7.2.1), c) characteristics and trends of processes and
d) suppliers.	products including opportunities for preventive action, and
	d) suppliers.
	Records of the results of the analysis of data shall be
	maintained (see 4.2.4).
8.5 Improvement	8.5 Improvement
8.5.1 Continual improvement:	8.5.1 General
The organization shall continually improve the	The organization shall identify and implement any
effectiveness of the quality management system	changes necessary to ensure and maintain the

54 ISO 2003 - All rights reserved ISO 13485:2003(E)

ISO 13485:2003
continued suitability and effectiveness of the quality management system through the use of the quality policy, quality objectives, audit results, analysis of data, corrective and preventive actions and manage ment review.
The organization shall establish documented pro cedures for the issue and implementation of notices. These procedures shall be capable of being implemented at any time. Records of all customer complaint investigations be maintained (see 4.2:4). If investigation that the activities outside the organization to the customer complaint, relevant information be exchanged between the organizations involved
(see 4.1). If any customer complaint is not followed by corrective and/or preventive action, the reason shall be authorized (see 5.5.1) and recorded (see 4.2.4).
If national or regional regulations require notification of adverse events that meet specified reporting criteria, the organization shall establish documented procedures for such notification to regulatory authorities.
Reason for differences: To make the resulting consistent with the objective of reflecting the regulations and facilitating the harmonization of medical device regulations around the world. improvement of the quality management system current objective of regulations.

8.5.2 Corrective action

The organization shall take: action to eliminate the cause of nonconformities in order to prevent recurrence. Corrective actions shall be appropriate the effects of the nonconformities encountered.

A documented procedure shall be established to define requirements for

- a) reviewing nonconformities (including customer complaints),
- b) determining the causes of nonconformities,
- c) evaluating the need for action to ensure that nonconformities do not recur
- d) determining and implementing action needed,
- e) records of the results of action taken (see 4.2.4), and

8.5.2 Corrective action

The organization shall take action to eliminate the cause of nonconformities in order to prevent recurrence. Corrective actions shall be appropriate the effects of the nonconformities encountered.

- A documented procedure shall be established to define requirements for
- a) reviewing nonconformities (including customer complaints),
- b) determining the causes of non conformities,
- c) evaluating the need for action to ensure that nonconformities do not recur,
- d) determining and implementing action including, needed, ... (see 4.2),
- e) recording of the results of any investigation and of action taken (see 4.2.4), and

© ISO 2003 - All rights reserved

55

ISO 13485:2003(E)

ISO 9001:2000	ISO 13485:2003
f) reviewing corrective action taken.	t) reviewing the corrective action taken and its effectiveness.
8.5.3 Preventive action	8.5.3 Preventive action
The organization shall determine action to eliminate	The organization shall determine action to eliminate
the causes of potential nonconformities in order to prevent their occurrence. Preventive actions shall appropriate to the effects of the potential problems,	the causes of potential nonconformities in order to prevent their occurrence. Preventive actions shall be appropriate to the effects of the potential problems.
A documented procedure shall be established to	A documented procedure shall be established to
define requirements for	define requirements for
a) determining potential non conformities and their	a) determining potential nonconformities and their
causes,	causes,
b) evaluating the need for action to prevent	b) evaluating the need for action to prevent
occurrence of nonconformities,	occurrence of nonconformities,
c) determining and implementing action needed,	c) determining and implementing action needed,
d) records of the results of action taken (see 4.2.4),	d) recording of the results of any investigations and
and	of action taken (see 4.2.4), and
e) reviewing preventive action taken.	e) reviewing preventive action taken and its
	effectiveness.

56

© ISO 2003 - All rights reserved

ISO 13485:2003(E)

Bibliography

[1] ISO 9001:2000, Quality management systems - Requirements

[2] ISO 10012, Measurement management systems - Requirements for measurement processes and measuring equipment

ISO 11134:1994, Sterilization of health care products - Requirements for validation and routine control - Industrial moist heat sterilization

[4] ISO 11135:1994, Medical devices - Validation and routine control of ethylene oxide sterilization (Corrigendum 1 published 1994)
[5]

[6]

[7]

ISO 11137:1995, Sterilization of health care products - Requirements for validation and routine control - Radiation sterilization (Corrigendum 1 published 1995; Amendment 1 published 2001) ISO 13641:2002, Elimination or reduction of risk of infection related to in vitro diagnostic medical devices

ISO 13683:1997, Sterilization of health care products - Requirement for validation and routine control of moist heat sterilization in health care facilities

[8] ISO 14155-1:2003, Clinical investigation of medical devices for human subjects - Part 1: General requirements

ISO 14155-2:2003, Clinical, investigation of medical devices for human subjects - Part 2: Clinical investigation plans

[10] ISO 14160:1998, Sterilization of medical devices - Validation and routine control of sterilization of single-use medical devices incorporating materials of animal origin by liquid chemical sterilants

[11] ISO 14937:2000, Sterilization of health care products - General requirements for characterization of a sterilizing agent and the development, validation and routine control of a sterilizing agent

[12] ISO/TR 14969:-1), Medical devices- Quality management systems - Guidance on the application of ISO 13485:2003

[13] ISO 14971:2000, Medical devices - Application of risk management to medical devices [14] ISO 19011:2002, Guidelines for quaity and/or environmental management systems auditing

[15] Global Harmonization 'Task Force (GHTF) - Study Group 1 (SG1), Document No. N029R11, dated 2 Feb., 2002

1) To be published.

© ISO 2003 - All rights reserved

57